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Independent Auditors’ Re port

To the Board of Directors of
Ajanta Pharma Limited

Report on the Financial Statements
Opinion

At the request of Ajanta Pharma Limited (APL), the Holding Company of Ajanta Pharma USA Inc.
(*APUI" or ‘the Company®), registered as a limited liability Company in New Jersev, United States of
America, we have audited the financial statements of the Company, which comprise the Balance sheet
as at 31 March 2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss ( including other comprehensive income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give a true and fair view in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read with
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules. 2015 (as amended from time to time) and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India. of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March
2022, and profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the vear
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SA) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Other Matter-Restriction on Use

These financial statements are prepared for the use of the Company and the Holding Company, Ajanta
Pharma Limited, to comply with the requirements of the Act. These financial statements are not the
statutory financial statements of the Company. As a resull, these financial statements may not be
suitable for any other purpose. Qur report must not be copied, disclosed, quoted. or referred to. in
correspondence or discussion, in whole or in part 1o anyone other than the purpose for which it has been @
issued without our prior written consent.
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Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The I-Inlding_ Company, APUI’s Management and their Board of Directors are responsible for the
preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs profit/loss
(including other comprehensive Income), changes in equity and cash flows of the C:II'I'IPHHV in
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Cmnp:;nies
Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules. 2015 (as amended
from time to time) and presentation requirements of schedule I (Division 1) to the Companies Act,
2013, as applicable, to the financial statements. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies:
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent: and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, Holding Company, APUI's Management and the Board of
Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists,
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We alsor

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control,

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures in the financial statements made by the Management and Board
of Directors.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
Ajanta Pharma Limited

Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)

. Conclude on the appropriateness of Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists. we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with the those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
cthical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable. related
safeguards. "

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

Sreeja Marar

Partner

Mumbai Membership No: 111410
10 May 2022 UDIN: 22111410A1SWZZ7382




. Ajanta Pharma USA Inc

. Balance Sheet
ax af 31 Murch 2027

(Currency: TISIY)

Assels

Non-current assels
Property, plant and equipment
Other intangible assets
Right-of-use assets
Deferred tax assets (net)
Income tax assels (ner)
Total non-current assets
Current assels
Inventories
Financial assets
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Other current assets
Total current assels

Tatal assets

Equity and Liahilitics
Equity
Equity share capital
Onher equity
Total equity

Liabilities
Non current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Lease labilities

Current liabilities
Finaneial liabilities

[-ease labiliues

Trade payables

Other financial lisbilities
(Mher current liabilities

Current tax liabalitics (net)
Total eurrent liabilities

Tatal equity and liabilities

Significant accounting policies
The note referred 1o above form an integral part of financial statement

As per our report of even date attached

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

/]

Sreeja Marar
Parmer
Membership MNo: 111410

Mumiba
L0 May 2022

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Note USD UsD

7 564,733 5T4.673
7 414,555 437,275
T 223,640 391370
] 1,826,396 3.436,162

9 1,324,066 -
6,353,390 4,839,4%0
10 27,147,919 26,887 587
11 80,559,579 52,272 552
12 3,841,566 4,282,324
13 659,616 886,807
112,208,680 84,329,270
118,562,070 £9. 168,750
14 L0000 1,000,000
15 9,950,221 7,159,338
10,950,221 8,159,338
6 79,082 255,533
17 176,449 1 Th 449
18 87,374,491 63,442,222
19 16,168,901 10,594,335
20 3812926 4,618,533
21 = 1,922 340
107,532,767 80,753,879
118,562,070 89,168,730

ltoh
Tod2

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
of Ajanta Pharma USA Toc.

—— w.mﬁ

Yogesh M. Agrawal
Drirector
DIN ; 00073673

Mumbai
10 May 2022
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Ajanta Pharma USA Inc

Statement of Profit and Loss Account
for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Currency: LISIY)

Income
Revenue from operations
{Cnher income
Total incume
Expenses
Purchase of stock-in-trade
Changes in mventories of finished goodsiwork-in-progress'stock-in-trade
Employes benefits expense
Finanee costs
Digpreciation and amorlisation expense
Other expenses
Total expenses
Profit belore tax
Tux expense
For current year
For earlier vears { Deferred Tax)
Dieftered tax

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income ( (loss)
ltems that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified o profit or loss
Net other comprehensive income / (loss) 1o be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profitor loss in subsequent
years
Tncomse tax relating to tems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Net other comprehensive income not to be reclussified to profit or loss in subsequent
yEars
hher comprehensive income | (loss) for the year, nel of tax
Total comprehensive income for the year

Earning Per Equity Share {Basic & Dituted) (Face Yalue USIY 100/

Significant accounting policies
The note referred 1o above form an integral part of financial statement

As per our report of even date atlached

ForBS R & Co. LLFP
Chartered Accounianis
Firm Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

I} y

Sreeja Marar
Partner
Membership No: 111410

Mumibai
10 May 2022

Mote

22
23

24
25
26
27
28
24

30

16
Tind2

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Ush LUsD
93,477,486 85617513
52,664 -
93,530,150 85,617,513
78,422,274 82,540,114
(260.332) (10,501,038)
1,683,599 4304352
110,797 130,330
283.287 280,528
6,710,435 5,610,667
89,950,060 82,364,953
3.580,090 3252.560
1.179,596 4,083,275
24,864 .
(415,253) (3,382,086)
2,790,883 2551371
2,790,883 2551371
279.09 25514

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
of Ajanta Pharma USA Ine.

——éhé?—-ww\p

Yogesh M. Agrawal
Direcior
DIN : 00073673

Mumbai
10 May 2022




Ajanta Pharma USA Inc

Statement of cashMow
Jor the vear enged 31 Mareh 3027

(Cusmency, LISD)

A. Cash Now from operating activities
Proit before 1ax
Adnstment for
Drepreciation and amortisation expense
Fiinance costs
Provision for expiced poods
Employes stock aphion expense
Operating cash Now before working capital changes
Changes in working capital
Decrenss/ (Increase) in trade recelvahle
ilncrease) in other cuzrent sssels
{Increase] in imventories
(Drecrease) / Increase in olhes carrent lizhalities
Increase in trade payables
Cash generated from operations
et income [ { paid )
Met cash Mlow peserated from operating sctivitics

B Cash Nlow from investing activities

Capieal expetidinure on property, plant and eqipment including capital advances

Net cash used in investing activities

C.  Cash fMlow from financing activities
{Repayment / Proceeds of Bomowings:
Repayment of lese linhiliey (including inferest thereom)
Interest paid
Net cash used in / frum financing activities

Net (decrease) / increase in cnsh snd cash ciquivalents

Cash and cash exquivalents as at the beginning of the vear
Cash and cash equivalents as ar the end of the year
Frgures in brackets indicates outfllow,

N

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
3,580,040 3252 500
283,287 280,528
11,7497 130,330
5,574,566 5,100,883
- B6.041
9,548,740 B.850.342
(28,287.027) 2ET1.027
127092 (A0, 865
[260,332) (10,501 018§
(B8, 64T) (4000 500)
23,931,269 6,663,256
4,355,238 7078, 144
(4425847 (2A435.642)
{70,604) 4,642 507
(82.897) (256,950}
(82.897) (256.950)
- (5.663,521)
{200,208} {200, 208)
(#7.039) (57,372}
(287,247 (5961101}
(440, 758) (1575544
4,252.324 5857 RoR
3.841,366 4,282,329

I The above Casl Flow Statemen has been prepared under “Indirect Method" as sét'out in Accounting Standard 7 (lnd A% - 7) "Statement of Cash Flow” under Section 133 of the

Companics Act 2013

2. Unsh conprises cash cn hand, current accoumts and depasits with banks. Cash equivaléss are shorl-team balances {with an ariginal mmurity of three months or less from the date of

BoquEsition )

3, Cluanges in liabilities arising from fnancing activities
Shert-term borrowings
Cipening balance
Amaeunt (repaid) / borrowed during the vear
Chosing halance

Sipmificant accoanting policies
The notes refemed to absve form an integral part of the cansolidated financial stalements
Ad per our report of even date sitnchied

ForBS# & Co, LLP

Chartered Accountants

Finm Registration No: 101 248W W= 100003
1

SreejaMa
Parmer
Mesnbership Moz 111410

Mumnbiai
10 May 2022

3 March 2022

31 March 2021

5603 521

(56635214

For and on behalf of Board af Directors of
Ajanta PFharma USA Ine,

—HG- vuan

Yogesh ¥, Aprawal
Director
DI 73673

Mismibai
0 My 2022




Ajanta Pharma USA Inc

Statement of Changes in Equity

Jor the year ended 3§ March 2022
(Currency: LSDY
A, Equity Shire Capital {Refer nate 14)

Balanceas  Changes in Hestated Changesin Bal a5 &t 3

at01 Aprll  Equity Skare  balamce at the equity share Mareh 2011

i Capital duelo  beginning of capital during
prior period  the current th year
wrTuns reporting

Anihinrised 1,0 000 - 10080, 000 1 000,500
Tasned : | 00,000 1,008,000 00,000
| Subscribed & Paid npt 0001000 1,000,000 5 1 000,000

Balancess  Changes in Restated Changes bn  Balance as w1 31

at 01 April  Equity Share  bulance ot the equity share March 2021

020 Capital doc to heginning ol capital during
prior peried  the curment b year
prTen reporting
T —

Amtherised © - - - -
s = 1,000,000 = 1,000,000 1,000,000
{Subscribed & Paid upe 1,000, 200 1,000,000 1,000,000




Ajanta Pharma USA Inc

Statement of Changes in Equity
i the year emcect 71 harch 2023

(Currency: LSy

B. Other equity (Refer note 15)

FParticolars

As ml | Aprd 2020
Chanyes in accoussting polocyfpriar petiod ermors
Restated belesce s o1 | Apieid 2020
Frafit for the perjod
Criber contprefensive sneoe
Tatal comprebennve meame
Stoek optuons of hedding company granded
831 Marchk 2021
Changes in sccounting poliey/preor penod errocs
Ressated balance exmt | Aphil 2021
Profit for the perod
Dither comsprehensive incame
olal comprehiensve inconse
At 31 March 2022

General  Share Based  Refained Fareign Equity Crher items of Total Nan- Total Equity

Reserve Payment Earnings  Currency contribution other Cantrolling

Reserve Translation  from Hodcking comprehensive Interests
_Reserve Com ini

(E.56T 502 - 044,131 - 449607 4521926 4521926
1,567,902} - 0,040,131 - 49,697 4.521.926 - 4,521,926
5 253137 - 1E5137] 2A51371
= - 2551371 - - 22517 = 2551378
- - - &G, ‘B0 6041
1,567,202) - LEL R - 135,738 - 7159399 - 7159239
(1,567,900 B,591.502 - 135,738 T.159,339 - 7,150,330
2790, BRY 2,7, BAY - 1,790,883
= E 2 790,883 - - 1,790,353 - 1,790,583
(1,567,901 = 11,382,306 = 135,738 2 ¥.930,227 . 9,930,222




Ajanta Pharma USA Inc

Statement of Changes in Equity
foor the yeur ended 31 March L

(Curreney: USD)

Nature of Reserves
a) General Reserve
The Gereral reterve is used from time 1o time 10 ransfer profits from retnined earmings for APPrOpERANoN parpose.

Iy} Retsined Earnings
Retsined Earnings are the profits that the Company has eamed il date less any trunsfer 10 general reserve, dividends or other distribtions paiidd to sharcholders

¢} Equity Contribution from Helding Company
The fair value of options granted by Parent company 1o emplovees of the company sne recopnised as Equity Contribution from Holding Conpany

The accsmpanying nates form an integral part of the financlal statements

For B SR & Co. LLP For and on behall of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accounianiy Ajanta Pharms USA Toc.
Firm Registrateng Mo: L91248WAW- 100022

—N& s

Sreeja Marar Yopesh M. Agrawal
Pariier [Nrectr
Membenbip No: 1114580 DN - 00DTI6TS
Mfumsbad Mumbnad
10 May 2022 10 May 2022




Ajanta Pharma USA Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2022

w

Corporate Information

Ajanta Pharma LI;-“:A Inc. is a limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in United States
of iﬁumcrlcu and is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ajanta Pharma Ltd., India. The address of its
registered office is located at 440, US | lighway, 22, East Bridgewater, New Jersey 08807, USA.

Company is primarily involved in the business of pharmaceutical and related activities.
Basis of preparation
Statement of Compliance

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of the
Indian Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™),

These financial statements do not constitute a set of statutory financial statements in accordance
with the local laws in which the Company is incorporated and are prepared for the sole purpose of
the Consolidation of Ind AS financial statements of the Company with Ajanta.

The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost basis,
except otherwise stated,

The Financial Statement for the year ended 31 March 2022 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee and subsequently approved by Board of Directors of Ajanta Pharma USA Inc at it’s
meeting held on 10 May 2022,

Use of estimates and judgements:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities on the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Estimates and under lying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to
accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in current and future periods.

The areas involving estimates or judgements are as follows:

Property, Plant and equipment

Useful lives of tangible assets, as determined by the company and assessed on an annual basis. is
based on the life prescribed in Schedule 11 of the Act. In cases, where the useful lives are different
from that preseribed in Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013, prevalent in India, they are based
on technical advice, taking into account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the
operating conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes,
manufacturers’ warrantics and maintenance support.

Intangible Assets

Internal technical or user team assess the remaining useful lives of Intangible assets. Management
believes that assigned useful lives are reasonable.




Ajanta Pharma USA Inc.

Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2022

Allowance for uncollected accounts receivable and advances

Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their normal value as reduced by
appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Individual trade receivables are u:friltcn
off when management deems them not collectible. Impairment is made on the expected eredit loss

model.

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumption ahpul risk c,'f default and
expected loss rates, Judgement in making these assumption and selqc?mg the inputs to the
impairment calculation arc hased on past history, existing market condition as well as forward
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Allowances for inventories

Management reviews the inventory age listing on a periodic basis. The review involves comparison
of the carrying value of the aged inventory items. The purpose is to ascertain whether an allowance
is required to be made in the financial statement for any obsolete and slow-moving items.
Management is satisfied that adequate allowance for obsolete and slow-moving inventories has been
made in the financial statements.

Management also reviews net realizable value for all its inventory and is satisfied that adequate
allowance has been made in the financial statements.

Recognition of deferred tax asscts and income tax

Deferred tax asset is recognised for all the deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can
be utilised. The management assumes that taxable profits will be available while recognising
deferred tax assets.

Management judgment is required for the calculation of provision for income taxes and deferred tax
assots and liabilities. The Company reviews at cach balance sheet date the carrying amount of
deferred tax assets. The factors used in estimates may differ from actual outcome which could lead
to significant adjustment to the amounts reported in the financial statements.

Recognition and measurement of other provisions
The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the probability
of an outlow of resources, and on past experience and circumstances known at the balance sheet

date. The actual outflow of resources at a future date may, therefore, vary from the figure included
in other provisions.

Contingencies

Management judgement is required for estimating the possible outflow of resources, if any, in
respect of contingencies/claim/litigations against the Company as it is not possible to predict the
outcome of pending matters with accuracy.

Impairment reviews
An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit (*CGU”) exceeds
=._its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its
iy WL in use. The value in use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow model. In calculating
U theivalue in use, certain assumptions arc required to be made in respect of highly uncertain matters
including management’s expectations of growth in EBITDA, long term growth rates; am_
sechz?t':nn of discount rates to reflect the risks involved - {f g




Ajanta Pharma USA Inc.

Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2022

Amounts deducted from revenue for the projected chargeback, sales returns, rebates and
Medicaid

The significant adjustments to the revenue are broadly explained below:

(a) A chargeback is a claim made by the wholesaler for the difference between the prices at which
the product is initially invoiced 1o the wholesaler and the net price at which it is agreed to be
procured from the company. Provision for chargeback is calculated on the basis of historical
experience and specific terms in the agreements

(b) Sales return is variable consideration that is recognised and recorded based on historical
experience, market conditions and provided for in the year of sale as reduction from revenue. The
methodology and assumptions used to estimate returns are monitored and adjusted regularly in line
with trade practices, historical trends, past experience and projected market conditions.

(¢) Provision for rebate is calculated on the basis of historical experience and specific terms in the
agreements. Charge back, rebates, returns and medicaid payments are variable consideration that {s
recognised and recorded based on historical experience, market conditions and specilic contractual
terms. The methodology and assumplions used to estimate rebates and retums are monitored and
adjusted regularly in line with contractual and legal obligations, trade practices historical trends, past
experience and projected market conditions.

(d) Following a decrease in the price of a product, the Company gencrally grants customers a "shelf
stock adjustment” for a customer's existing inventory for the involved product. Provisions for shelf
stock adjustments are determined at the time of the price decline or at the point of sale, if the impact
of a price decline on the products sold can be reasonably estimated based on the customer's
inventory levels of the relevant product.

Functional and Presentation Currency

These financial statements are presented in United States Dollars ( USD) which is alsa !hr: functional
currency. All the amounts have been rounded off 1o the nearest USD, unless otherwise indicated.

Current / non-current classification

An entity shall classify an asset as current when-

(a) it expects to realise the asset, or intends to sell or consume it, in its normal operating cycle;
(b) it holds the asset primarily for the purpose of trading;

(¢} it expects to realise the asset within twelve months afier the reporting period; or

(d) the asset is cash or a cash equivalent unless the asset is restricted from being exchanged or used
to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

An entity shall classify all other assets as non-current.

An entity shall classify a liability as current when-

{a) it expects to settle the liability in its normal aperating cyele:
(b) it holds the liability primarily for the purpose of trading;

(c) the liability is due to be settled within twelve months afier the reporiing period: or

———,
- g B
,fff.-n;_-!. -
.f,'/;‘.\;.? s N
/ llr__.. '\II-IIf_: \
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Ajanta Pharma USA Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2022

6.1

{(d) it does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the
counterparly, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its
classification.

An entity shall classify all other liabilities as non-current.

Operating Cycle
An operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation
in cash or cash cquivalents.

Rased on the nature of products / activities of the Company and the normal time belween acquisition
of assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operaling
cycle as twelve months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and
non-current.

Significant Accounting Policies
Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs arc included
in the assets carrying amount or recognised as a separalc assel as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write ofT the cost of assets, 1o their residual
values over their estimated useful life as follows:

| Particulars | Useful Life ]
Building 27.5 years
Furniture, Fixtures & Fittings | 10 years
Computer Software’s 5 years

The asset's residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at each end of
reporting period. Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount. it is written down immediately 1o its recoverable amount. Gains and losses on disposals of
property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
included in the statement of profit or loss.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that the future economic benefits that arc
attributable to the assets will flow to the Company and the cost of the assets can be measured
reliably.

Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. if any.
Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the
related expenditure is reflected in Statement of profit and loss in the period in which the expenditure

— 5 incurred.

4
i

' \Qvai\]Tble for intended use, subject to impairment test.
[

i,

,ﬁiﬁware is amortised over their estimated useful life on straight line basis from the date they are

[




Ajanta Pharma USA Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2022

6.2

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible assets with a finite useful life
are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the
expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to
modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting
eslimates,

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of intangible assets are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the
statement of profil and loss when the assets are derecognised,

Impairment on non-financial assels

The Company’s non-financial assets other than inventories and deferred tax assels, are reviewed at
each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows (i.e. corporalc assets)
are grouped together into cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
CGlls,

The recoverable amount of a CGU is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell.
Value in usc is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the CGU.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment loss recognized in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of assets for which impairment loss has been recognized in prior
periods, the Company reviews al each reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has
decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that
the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined.
net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial assel of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entily.

Financial Asscts
Classification
Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through

other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss, on the basis of its business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Initial Recognition and Measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial asseis not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisilion
of the financial asset.
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Subsequent Measurement

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two broad calegories:
e Financial assets at fair value (FVTPL/ FVTOCT)
« Financial assets at amortised cost

When assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognised in the statement of
profit and loss (i.e. fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)), or recognised in other comprehensive
income (i.e. fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)).

Financial Assets measured at Amortised Cost (net of any write down for impairment, if any)
Financial assets arc measured at amortised cost when asset is held within a business model, whose
objective is 10 hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows and contractual terms of the asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest. Such
financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method less impairment, if any. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement
of profit and loss.

Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (“FYTOCI")
Financial assets under this category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value. when asset is held within a business model, whose objective is to hold assels for both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets. Fair value movements are recognized
in the other comprehensive income.

Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through Profit or Laoss (“FVTPL"):

Financial assets under this category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value with all changes recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition of Financial Asscts

A financial asset is primarily derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired or Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset.

Impairment of Financial Assets

In accordance with Ind - AS 109, Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets that are debt instruments
and trade receivables.

Financial Liabilitics

Classification

Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost or FVTPL.
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6.4

Initial Recognition and Measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans, borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs,

Financial liabilitics include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts and derivative financial instruments,

Subsequent Measurement

Financial liabilitics at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss,

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cos using the
Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derccognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender
on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories is
based on the moving weighted average basis, and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the
inventories and other costs incurred in bringing them to their present location and condition. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
selling expenses,

The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item-by-item basis. The Company
considers various factors like shelf life, ageing of inventories, product discontinuation, price changes
and other factors which impact the company’s business in determining the allowance for obsolete,
non-saleable and slow, non-moving inventories. The company considers the above factor and adjusts
the inventory provision to refleet its actual performance on actual basis. Goods in transit are valued
at actual cost incurred up to the date of balance sheet,

Cash and cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise of cash on hand and cash at bank including [lixed
deposivhighly liquid investments with original maturity period of three months or less that are
readily convertible 1o known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-
term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafls as they arc considered an
integral part of the group’s cash management,
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6.6

6.7

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash
flows. The cash flow from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company arc
segregated.

Foreign Currency Transaclions

‘lransactions in foreign currencies are wranslated into the Company's functional currency at the
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assels and liabilities that arc
measured at fair value in a foreign currency arc ranslated into the functional currency at the
exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are not translated. Foreign currency
exchange differences are generally recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items
al rates different from those at which they were iranslated on initial recognition during the period or
in previous Financial Statements are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in
which they arise. When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income, any exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income. Conversely, when a gain or loss on a non-monelary item is recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss, any exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Revenue Recognition

Sale of Goods
The Company applied Ind AS 115 using the modified retrospective approach.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price adjusted for chargebacks, discounts and rebates,
which is specified in a contract with customer. Revenue are net of estimated returns and taxes
collected from customers.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized at point in time when control is transferred to the
customer and it is probable that consideration will be collected. Control of goods is transferred upon
the shipment of the goods to the customer or when goods is made available to the customer.

‘I'he transaction price is documented on the sales invoice and payment is generally due as per agreed
credit terms with customer.

The consideration can be fixed or variable. Variable consideration is only recognised when it is
highly probable that a significant reversal will not occur.

st income is recognised on time proportion basis. Insurance and other claims are recognised as
ue on certainty of receipt on prudent basis. Export benefits available under prevalent schemes
unted to the extent considered receivable. v
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6.10

Dividend income is recognised when the Entity’s right to receive the payment is established, which
is generally when sharcholders approve the dividend.

Employee Benefits

Short-term H‘E:lllﬂﬁls = The Company recognizes a liability net of amounts already paid and an
expense for services rendered by employees during the accounting period. Short-term benefits given

by the Company to its employees include salaries and Wwages, social security contributions, Medicare
contributions, and other non-monetary benefits. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to
be paid: if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result
of past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

Post-Employment Benefits — The Company provides a 401(k) retirement program for full-time
employees who are 21 years of age or older, Eligible employees are entitled to participate in the
company offered plan with an option 1o contribute up to the maximum of 3% of annual basce salary,
For employees with an annual base salary above the annual compensation limits, as determined by
the Federal Internal Revenue Service (Federal), the annual APUI contribution will be capped at 3%
of the Federal allowed annual compensation limits. All contributions are 100% vested immediately
to the employee.

Share-based compensation

Employees Stock Options Plans (“ESOPs™): The grant date fair value of options granted 10
employees is recognized as an employee expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period that the employees become unconditionally entitled to the options. The expense is recorded
for each separately vesting portion of the award as if the award was, in substance, multiple awards.
The company recognizes compensation expense relating to share-based payments in net profit using
fair-value in accordance with Ind AS 102, Share-Based Payment, The ESOPs (shares of holding
company) are granted to the employees of the company.

Provisions (other than employce benefits)

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of cconomic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-lax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is
recognised as finance cost. Expected future operating losses are not provided for.

Borrowing Cosis

Borrowing costs comprise of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs dircctly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of an asset that takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale
are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they occur. Transaction costs are charged to statement of profit and loss as financial expenses
over the term of borrowing.

Lease

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement al the inception date, whether fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of

=
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a specific assel or assets or the arrangement CONVEYs a right 1o use the assel, even if that right is not
explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Earnings Per Share

Basic carnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the cquity
holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period. Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the
equity holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for
deriving basic camings per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that
could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential
equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity shares been actually issued at
fair value. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period,
unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential cquity shares are determined independently for cach
period presented.

Income Taxes

[ncome tax expense comprises current and deferred income tax.

Income tax expense is recognized in net profit in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent
that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in other
comprehensive income. Current income tax for current and prior periods is recognized at the amount
expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities, using the respective Country’s 1ax rales
and tax laws that have been enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all temporary differences arising
hetween the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial stalements.
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at cach reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no
Jonger probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet. if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultancously.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable
income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled.
The effect of changes in tax rates on deferred income 1ax assels and liabilities is recognized as
income or expense in the period that includes the enactment or the substantive enactment date. A
deferred income tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax losses can be utilized. The
Company offsets current lax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right
to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the
asset and settle the liability simultancously.

Dividends to Sharcholders

Annual dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised as a liability in the period in which
the dividends are approved by the sharcholders. Any interim dividend paid is recognised on
approval by Board of Directors. Dividen ble is recognised directly in equity.
pp e ﬂ%%\ g y in equity
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Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, Contingent Assets and Commitments

General
Provisions (legal and constructive) are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made,

Provisions (excluding retirement benefits and compensated absences) are not discounted 1o jis
present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the
balance sheet date. These are reviewed al cach balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimates.

If there is any expectation that some or all of the provision will be reimbursed, the reimbursement js
recognised as a separate asset byt only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense
relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any virtually certain
reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risk specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of:

* A present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation;

* A present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimates is possible:

* A possible obligation arising from past events, unless the probability of outflow of resources is
remole.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised but disclosed in the Financial Statemens, Contingent assets
are neither recognised nor disclosed in the Financial Statements.

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for
completion of assets and Non-cancellable operating lease.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each balance
sheet date,

Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at cach balance sheet
date in accordance with Ind AS 113.

Financials Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following

material items in the statement of financial position:

* Derivative financial instruments in the nature of forward foreign exchange contracts are
measured at fair value received from Bank.

* Mutual Funds are measured at fair values as per Net Asset Value (NAV).

* Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) at fair values as per Black Scholes option pricing model.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or settle a liability in an ordinary
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
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The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market p-anicipan‘t's ability to
generate cconomic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for :which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant ohservable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements arc

categorised within the fair value hicrarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that

is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

e Level | — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

« Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

+ Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the company has determined classes of assets and
liahilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of
the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On
March 23, 2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,
2022, applicable from April 1st, 2022, as below:

Ind AS 103 — Reference to Conceptual Framework

The amendments specify that to qualify for recognition as part of applying the acquisition method,
the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed must mect the definitions of assets and
liabilities in the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Indian Accounting Standards
(Conceptual Framework) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India at the acquisition
date. These changes do not significantly change the requirements of Ind AS 103.

Ind AS 16 — Property, plant and equipment

‘The amendment clarifies that excess of net sale proceeds of items produced over the cost of testing,
if any. shall not be recognized in the profit or loss but deducted from the directly attributable costs
considered as part of cost of an item of property, plant, and cquipment.
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Ind AS 37 — Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that that the *cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the “costs that relate

directly 1o the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be

incremental costs of

fultilling that contract (examples would be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs

that relate directly 1o fulfilling contracts.

Ind AS 109 — Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)

The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the *10 percent’ test of Ind

AS 109 in assessing whether to derecognize a financial liability .

Ind AS 106 — Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)

The amendments remove the illustration of the reimbursement of leaschold improvements by the
lessor in order to resplve any potential confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives that

might arise because of how lease incentives were described in that illustration.

The Company will evaluate these amendments to give effect as required by law,

-
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{Cerrency: LSI)

7 Praperty. plant and equipment, capital work-

71 Current Year

in -progress, investment praperty and other intangible assets

Geross Block (Cost Or Dierned Ciost) Accumulsted Deprecration/ Amortisation Met Block
Particulars 01 April 2021 Addrtions - Dispesals Adpustments 31 March 2022 01 April 2021 For the Disnosals Adiustmenis 31 March 2022 Al March 2022
- Year - .
A Pruperty. Flant and Equipmens
Freebald land 256,500 £ 256,500 . . 245, 300
Buldings EL - 62461 4, 581 13175 107,746 2545
Furmitvre and {ixture 203,564 14,288 - 2i8.252 153671 11,083 164,724 53528
Tatal §21,975 14,288 - 837,213 248,252 24228 I724m0 564,738
B her intangible nssets = }
Campatar softwase 531,513 6 609 - G0, 142 4,258 9119 - - 183 587 414,555
Total 531,533 LA - & 00,142 4,238 91,320 - - 185,557 414,555
Total (A)+ (B} 1354458 2 A0T 1,437.358 342510 115,557 = A58 067 9T0 288
€ Intangihle assets ender developmsen 164,367 - 164,367 164 367 - - 164,367
Tudal (A} + () + () Ty
12 Previous Year
Gimoss Block (Cost Or Deamed Cost) Accurmiisted Diepirecintion/ Amorisation Met Block _]
Particulurs a1 April 2020 Addstions Diigposals Adjusimients 31 March 2021 00 Apeil 2020 For the Thispasaly Adjirstmenty AT Maseh 202} 31 Whared 202
Year
A Properts, Plant and Equipment
Feechald lasl 256,500 - 256,500 - . . . . 155,500
Buildings T2 461 - 362,461 Bl 400 13,180 . 3 94 58 207 BED
Furmitere and fixtuze 203,904 - - 200,564 134,615 14 Gs7 153,671 50209
Tatal #2198 " . 821918 216015 32237 248282 STLETE
B Other intangible nsseis . - .
Compuder softasne lis2 367 67,166 - 531 433 13697 BO251 - - 4,158 437275
Total 164 367 367,166 - 831,513 13,657 K56 - - S4,258 437,278
Total (A} + {B) 087,292 367, 166 = = 1324 455 119,712 112,798 - - 342,500 10071548
€ Intangsbic assess under developmesn 14583 94,784 205,000 164,367 164,367 - - 16 167
Tatal (A) = (B} + {C) 1011948
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[(Cumrency” LISD)
) Right-of-use asset
73 Current Year
Gross Block (Cost O Deemed Cost) Accmmiated Depreciation/ Amoniation puet Riock
Particutars | April 2021 Additiins Disposals  Adjustments 31 March 2012 31 March 2022 31 March 2022
Leaschald properses [1efer note 33) 726,830 B - T26.830 500,150 213,640
Total 126430 2 - 726,530 503,190 223,640 J
74 Previous Year
Giross Block (Cost Or Deemed Cost) Accumulated Deprecimtion’ Amonisation Met Block
Particalars 1 April 2020 Additions Disposals  Adjustments 31 March 2021 Disposals  Adjusments 31 March 2021 31 March 2021
Leasehitd properists {refer note 33} 126,530 £ 726,830 135,460 391370
Taial T16.530 B . . T16A30 335 460 391370
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(Currency: USD)
31 March 2022 31 March 202]
Usp LISD
8 Defered tax assets (net)
The tax effects of signilicant temporary difference that resulied in deferred tax asset und liahilitics and
a description of that created these difference in given below: {refer note 39)
Tax effect of jtems consttuting - Deferred tux assers
Leave Encashment {A) 32678 31,392
Provision for Loss Allowance (B) 45,239 45,306
Guaraniee Fees paid 1o holding company () - 8367
Stock option ™ (9,129 5,249
Chargebacks, Rebates, Admin Fees (E} 253,551 1,068 383
263A Capitalization Cost (F) 35028 -
Sales Return for expired Goods (G 3,525,999 2338773
Tax effect of items constituting - Deferred tax labilities
Difference in tax base ol property, plant and cquipment {H} 56,970 61,308
Dicterred tax assets (net) (AYBACHDHE+HF+G)-{H) 3,826,394 436,162
3.826.396 436,162
0 Income tax assets ( net)
Income tax paid (net provision LSD L179,596) 1,324,066 -
1,324,066 =
11 Inventories
Stock-in-Trade 27147919 26887587
27,147,919 26,887.587

During the year, the group recorded inventory write downs of USD 976 888 (31 March 2021 TSD 120,217). These adjustmenis were
included in cost of material consumed and changes in inventories,

11 Trade receivables

Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
-Trade receivables considered pood 80,559,579 52272352
Liss: Provision for
-Trade receivables considered pood <
~Trade receivables credit impaired -

Total Trade receivables 80,559,579 52372552

80,559,579 52,272 552
(There are no uther trade receivables which have significant increasc in credit risk, Refer note 33 for information ibout credit risk and market risk of trade
recenvables)

The loss allowance on trade receivable has been computed on the basis of [nd AS 09, Financial Instruments which require such allowance to be made even for teade

receivable considercd good on the basis that credit visk exists even though § ™ very fuw.]'h: Company's exposure to credit and currency risk and-oe
allowanee related 10 trade receivable are disclosed in note 33) / e L B

- i
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(Currency: USD)
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
UsD usD
12 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash und cash equivalents
Balange with banks - in current dccounts 3,841,566 4282524
3,841,566 4282324
13 Other current assets
Advance o related parties - 183,308
Prepaid expense 659,062 (83.093
Advances 1o suppliers 455 20,000
Advances to employees a9 404
59,616 B&6.807
14 Equity share capital
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Sumber of Shares UsD Numbser of LsD
Shares
Authorised :
Common Stocks of USD 100 each 10,000 1,000,000 10,000 1.0040.000
Issued, Subscribed & Faid up
Common Stocks of USD 100 cach fully Paid up 10,000 1,000,000 10,000 1,000,000
{a) Reconciliation of number of equity shares outstanding at the beginming and at the end of the year :
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Number of Shares usD Number of UsD
Shares
Numbser of shares outstanding as at the beginning of the year 10,000 1,000,000 10,000 1,000,000
Add © Number of shares allotied as fully paid-up during the year . 2 = =
Less: Number of shares bought back during the year - i £ 5
Number of shares outstanding as at the end of the year 10,000 1,000,000 (0,000 1,000,000
(b} Rights, preferences and restrictions atiached to shares
The company has issued only one class of equity shares with voting rights having a par value of USD 100 per share.
The company have not declared any dividend
In the event of Liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company.
The distribution will he in proportion ta the numbers of equity shares held by shareholders.
(¢ ) Details of equity shareholders holding more than 5%
Mame of Sharcholder 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Number of Shares % holding Number of % holding
Shares
Ajanta Pharma Ltd, India e 10,000 100.00 10,000 100.00
() Shares reserved for issue under options il Nil Nil
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{Currency: USD)

15

16

17

19

20

Other equity

General reserve

Balance an the beginning of the vear
Add : Transterred from Statcment of Profit & Loss
BHalance as a1 the year end

Exchange Fluctuation Reserve

Equity contribution from Helding Company

Employes stock options
Balance at the beginning of the year
Charge during the vear
Balance as at the year end

Retained earnings

Balance a1 the beginning of the year
Profit for the vear
Balance at the year end

Total other equity

Lease liabilities (non current)

Leasc liabilitics (refer note 34)

Lease liabilities (current)

Lease liabilitics {refer note 34)

Trade payables

Trade pavahles to related party (refer note 37)

Other financial liabilities {current)

Sales return for expired goods (Refer note 35)

Other current liahilities

Others payables

31 March 2022
Lsp

(1,.567.902)

{1,567,902)

135,738

31 March 2021
UsD

(1,567,902)

135,738

£,591,502
2,790,883

{1,567.902)

49697
6,041

135738

6,040,131
4,551,371

11,382 385

9,950,221

591502

79082

79,082

7,159.338

255,531

255,533

176,449

176,449

176.44%

87.374,4M

176,449

63,442,222

87.374,491

63,442 222

16,168,901

16,168,901

10,594,335

3812926

3.812,926

10,594,335

4,618,533

4,618,533
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
as af 31 Mareh 20022

(Cerrency: UUSD)

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
UsD LisD
1 Current tax liabilities (net)
Provision for tax (net of advance tax USE NA (31 March 2021 USD 961,190)) - 1,922 340
- 1,922 340
22 Revenue from operations
Sale of products
Stock-in-Trade 93,477 480 85,617,513
93,477,486 85.617,513
Reconciliation of revenue from operations with contracted partics:
Contracted price 472,777,783 392 534, 136
Adjustments
- Chargeback, rebetes and discounts 358,275,514 IRE ARE 743
- Sales retum 7.326,142 8047207
- Onhers 13,698,641 10,285,673
Sale of products 93477486 £5.617.513
3 OTHER INCOME
Miscelloncous [ncome 52,604 -
52064 E
24 a. Purchase of stock-in-trade (Related party) 78422274 82,789,464
b. Purchase of stock-in-trade (Others) - (249 355)
25  Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade
Inventories at the end of the vear :
Stock-in-trade 27,147,919 26,887,587
(A) 27.147,919 26,847,587
Inventories ai the beginning of the year:
Stock-in-trade 26,887,587 16,386,549
(B} 26,887,587 16,386,349
Effect of foreign exchange transiation
Stock-in-trade
(©) - -
Total changes in inventories of fnished goods. wo rk-in-progress
Stock-in-trade {260.332) (10.501,038)
Total changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress (B) - (A +(C) (266,332) (10,501,038)

and stock-in-trade :
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
as ai 3 Mareh 2022

{Curreney: USD)

26 Employee benefit expense

Sularies, wages, bonus and allowances
Employee welfare expenses

Employee stock option expense (refer note 38)
Comribution to statutory funds (refer note 32)

27 Finance costs

Interest expenses

Interest on Lease liability (refer note 34

Orther borrowing cost *

* Includes Guarantee Commission of USD 70194 (31 March 2021 . 625000 (refer note 37)

28 Depreciation and amortisation expense

Diepreciation of propenty, plant and equipment {Refer note 7)
Amortization of intangible assets (Refer note 7)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Refer note 7y

2% Other Expenses

Clearing and forwarding

Selling expenses

Insurance

Travelling expenscs

Telephone, telex & postage

Legal and Professional Fees
Repairs to others

Power and fuel

Impairment loss on financial assets
Miscellancous expenses

31 March 2022
Usp

3,955,951
253,879

473,769

4,683,599

31 March 2021
uUsnp

3,575,870
360,615
86,041
281,826

23,757
57,040

4,304,352

110,797

24,228
21,329
167,730

24,649
32958
72,723

130,330

283,287

32237
£0.561
167,730

4,319,094
1,182,584
298,366
82816
437,214
227450
37,390
3,338
38,672
83,513

280,528

3,624,012
1,084,777
324,948
440
301322
176,040
4,348
2,289

92491

6,710,435

5,610,667
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2022

(Currency: UsD)

30.  Capital Management

Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor
and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. Management
monitors the return on capital, as well as the level of dividends to equity shareholders. The
Company’s objective for capital management is to maximise sharcholder value, safeguard
business continuity and suppart the growth of the Company. The Company determines the

capital requirement based on annual operating plans and long-term and other strategic
investment plans.

Company monitors capital using a ratio of ‘adjusted net debt' 1o 'total cquity’. For this
purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total liabilities, comprising interest-bearing loans
and borrowings and obligations under finance leases, less cash and cash equivalents and
current invesiments. Adjusted equity comprises all components of equity.

Company’s policy is to keep the ratio below 1.00 and its adjusted net debt to equity ratio at
31 March 2022 was as follows,

UsD
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Total Bomowing 2 »
Less: cash and cash equivalents 3841566 4,282,324
Adjusied net deby A (3,841.566) (4,282,324)
Equity B 10,950,220 8,150.338
Adjusted net debt i Equity ratio AB B (0.35) (0.52)

31.  Earnings Per share (EPS):

The numerator and denominator used to caleulate Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share:

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 |
Basic and diluted earnings per share:

Profit attributable 1o Equity sharcholders- for Basic Epg A 2,790,883 2.551.37
(L'SIn)

Add: Dilutive effect on profit (LS B - -
Profil attributable o Equity sharcholders For computing  C=A-B 2,790,883 2.551.371
Diluted EPS (USD)

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding - for ¥ 10,000 1L000
basic EPS

Add: Dilutive effeet of option outstanding- Number of I - -
Equity Shares

Weighted average number of equity shares for diluted EPS F=Da: 10,000 10,004
Face value per equily share (USD) 100 100
Basic earnings per share (UsD) A 279.09 255.14
Diluted earnings per shares (USD) CiF 179.09 255.14
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32.

33.

Employee benefits

As required by Ind AS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’, the Company offers its employees: Short-
term employee benefits - These benefits include salaries and wages and other government
contributions which are due within 12 months after the end of the period in which employee
renders the related service. The Company's accrual on account of vacation liabilities
amounted to USD 149,847 (31 March 2021 USD 143,741).

Retirement plan - The Company provides a 401(k) retirement program for full-time
employees who are 21 years of age or older. Eligible employees are entitled to participate in
the company offered plan with an option to contribute up the maximum 3% of annual base
salary. For employees with an annual base salary above the annual compensation limits, as
determined by the Federal Internal Revenue Service (Federal), the annual APUI contribution
will be capped at 3% of the Federal allowed annual compensation limits. All contributions
are 100% vested immediately to the employee. The company also provides a profit sharing
contribution in to the 401(k) account which is discretionary. The total expense for employee
retirement benefit plan including the profit sharing contribution for the year ended 31 March
2022 was USD 473,769 (31 March 2021 : USD 281,826).

“inancial Instrument — fair values and risk management

r!‘.?itxﬂ_lys.mcgsufc!nwf:

31 March 2021
Financial instruments by category Amortised Cost Amortised Cost
Financial assets
Trade receivables 80,559,579 52,272,552
Cash and cash cquivalents 1,841,506 4282304
Total financial assels 4,401,145 56,551.870
Financial Habilitics
Lease liabilities 255,531 431,982
Oither current financial liabilitics 16,168,902 10,594,335
Trade payables 87,374,491 63,442,222

| tot nsmcnttobitiies temeon AR

There are no financial instruments classified as Fair Value through profit and loss and fair
value through other comprehensive income. Fair value measurement of lease liabilities is
not required.

A. Financial risk management
Company has exposure 10 following risks arising from financial instruments:
» Credit risk

Liguidity risk

Market risk
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(Currency: USD)

33.

Risk management framework

The Company's activities are exposed

Financial Instrument — fair values and risk management (Continued)

to financial risks. These risks include market risk,

credit risks and liquidity risk. The Company's overall risk management program secks to

i Credit risk

Credit risk the risk that
instrument or customer contract,
credit risk from its operating

2 counter party will not meet its obligations under a financial
leading 1o a financial Joss, The Company is exposed to
activities (primarily trade reccivables) and from its

financing activities, including deposits with banks other financial instruments,

Other financial assets

The Company limits its ex posure to credit risks by depositing

its cash only with financial

institutions duly evaluated and approved by the Board of Directors.

Impairment:

The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk and expected

credit loss for trade receivables:

| 31 March 2022
Carrying amount Weighted averape Laoss allowance |
loss rate

Not due 80,559,579 1% - ‘

| Past due upta 180 days - s 2 |
Past due 181-365 days - 0% -
Past dues 366 - 730 days - L - |
Pust dues 731 - 1096 days - 0% i
| More than 1096 days - 0% -
80,559,579 : |

_— _—
| 31 March 2021 |
| Weighted averuge |
Carrying amount loss rate Lass allowance

Not due 32272552 =% -
Past due upto 180 days - % - ‘
| Past due 181-365 days - 0% - |
Past dues 366 - 730 days - 0% -
Past dues 731 - 1096 days = 0% - |
More than 1096 days - 0% - |

| 52,272,552 .
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33.  Financial Instrument — fair values and risk management (Continued)

‘I'he above financial assets were not impaired as there had not been a significant change
in credit quality and the amounts were still considered receivable based on the nature of
the activity of the customer portfolio to which they belong and the type of the customers,
There are no other classes of financial asscts that are past due but not impaired except

for Trade receivables as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021

Trade receivable

Company’s credit risk is minimal. The trade receivables arise mainly from transactions
with its approved customers. The maximum exposure to credit on these transactions is

equal to the carrying amount of these financial instruments. Custome
stringent financial, credit and legal verification process. In addition,

rs are subject to
trade receivable

balances are monitored on an ongoing basis to ensure timely collections. Accordingly,

the Company’s exposure to bad debis is not significant.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for
major clients. In addition, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into
homogenous groups and assessed for impairment collectively. The caleulation is based
on historical data, The maximum exposure 10 credit risk at the reporting date is the
carrying value of cach class of financial assets. The company does not hold collateral as

security.

Expected eredit loss assessment

The Company allocates each exposure 1o a credit risk grade based on a variety of data

that is determined to be predictive of the risk of loss (e.g. timeliness of payments,
available press information etc.) and applying experienced credit judgement.

Exposures 10 customers outstanding at the end of each reporting period are reviewed by
the Company to determine incurred and expected credit losses. Historical trends of
impairment of trade receivables do not reflect any significant credit losses. Given that
the macroeconomic indicators affecting customers of the Company have not undergone
any substantial change, the Company expects the historical trend of minimal credit

losses to continue.
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Gross Carrying amount 80,559,579 52,272,552
Average Expected loss rate 0.00% 0.00%
Carrying amoun of trade receivables {net of impairment) 80,559,579 52,272,552

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade and other receivables

during the year was as follows:

— T 31 March2022

L \ Balance us at the beginning of the year -
i Iimpairment loss recognised (net) -

\ Amourts written off =

\ Balance as f the year end =

31 March 2021
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33,

Financial Instrument — fair values and risk management (Continued)

The impairment loss at 31 March, 2020 related to several customers that have defaulted
on their payments to the Company and are not expecied to be able to pay their
outstanding balances, mainly due 1o economic circumstances,

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future
cash and collateral obligations without incurring unacceptable losses. The Company’s
objective is to, at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and
collateral requirements, The Company closely monitors its liquidity position and
deploys a robust cash management system. Working capital requirements are adequately
addressed by internally generated funds. Trade receivables are kept within manageahle
levels.

Company aims to maintain the level of its cash and cash equivalents and other highly
marketable debt investments at an amount in excess of expected cash outflows on
financial liabilities over the next six months. The ratio of cash and cash cquivalents and
other highly marketable debt investments to outflows is 0.04 at 3] March 2022 (3]
March 2021: 0.05).

Exposure to liquidity risk

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the
reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include estimated interest
payments and exclude the impact of netling agreements.

[ Mm s,

i Carrying . '
31 March 2022 Aieunt Conteactual Cash Flows
Total O-12months  1-2years  2-5 years ;;“;r:'“‘“
Trade payahles 87,374,491 87,374,491 BT.374491 - - -
current
Lease liabilitics 255,531 255,531 176,449 THO82 - -
Other corrent 16,165,902 16,168,902 L6, 168,902 - - -
financial Habilities
| Total 103,798,924 103,798,924 103719842 79,082 : ~]

= st S — ==

As at Currying ,

31 March 2021 A Contractual Cash Flaws
" Muore than
Faial 0-12 months 12 years 2.5 years P

Trade payables 63442232 63442322 6344229 : :
current
Lease liabilities 431,982 431,982 176,449 186,154 69,379 .
Other current 10,594 335 10,594 335 [0,594 335 - - -
financial linbilities

Total ?4_-1-&!‘15?1‘:' 74468 539 74,213,006 186,154 65379 i

W
—

‘:{ﬁ_ﬂ e a
s AccC
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33.  Financial Instrument — fair values and risk management (Continued)

jit. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices — such as foreign exchange rates,
interest rates and equity prices — will affect the Company’s income or the value of its
holdings of financial instruments. ‘The objective of market risk management is to manage
and control market risk exposurcs within acceptable parameters, while optimising the
return. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings,
deposits, investments, and derivative financial instruments. The Company’s exposure
from market risks is primarily on account of interest rate risk.

a) Curreney risk

The Company does not have foreign exchange risk as their entire dealings are in
their local functional curreney i.e., US Dollars.

b) Interest rate risk

Company’s exposurc 1o changes in interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s
short-term debt obligations. Fixed rate financial instruments are subject to fair value
interest rate risk. The following table demonstrates the sensitivity analysis 1o a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other variable held constant, of
the Company s profit before income tax. The estimates are based on the outstanding
interest-bearing liabilities of the Company with floating interest rate as at 31 March
2022 and 31 March 2021.

e - = usn
Year (hange in interest rate” Effect on profit before tax
31 March 2022 F1%/ (-1%) =
| 31 March 2021 v1% / (-1%) .

* [olding all other variable constant
c) Price risk
Company does not have any exposure to price risk, as there is no equity investments.
34.  Disclosure for leases:
The Company have taken a premise under operating lease. The lease is for a period of five

year and renewable every year upan mutual consent of the parties. There are no contingent
rents.
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34.  Disclosure of Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets

[ As at 31 Mareh 2022

Land and Bufding&

UsD

Cost
Asat | April 202] 7206830
Additions -
Disposals -
Balance at 31 March 2022 726,830
Aceumulated depreciation and impairment
Asat | April 2021 335460
Depreciation 167,730
Impairment loss _
Eliminated on disposals of assets -
Balance at 31 March 2022 503,1 EIEJ
As at 31 March 2021 Land and Buildings |

LS

Cost
Asat 1 April 2020 726,830
Additions -
Disposals -
Balance at 31 March 2021 T26.830
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Asat | April 2020 167,730
Depreciation 167,730
Impairment loss -
Eliminated on disposals of assets -

| Balance at 31 March 2021 335460 |
Carrying Amouns |
Asat 1 April 202) 391,370
Balance at 31 March 2022 223.640
As at | April 2020 559,100
Balance a1 31 March 2021 391370
Cash outflow on leases
Particulars o 31 March 2022 31 March 202]

UsD

Cash outflow on leases (200,208) (200,208)
Total cash outMaw on Il.-nsn;'sJ :

(200,208)

{200.20%)




Ajanta Pharma USA Inc

Notes to the Financial St atements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Currency: USD)

34. Disclosure of Leases (Continued)

Maturity analysis

Particulars Less than Over 1 years
1 vear
UsD UsD
31 March 2022
Lense liabilities 79.082 176449
31 March 2021
Leasc Liabilities 176,449 255,533

35, Sales return for expired goods

o UsDh
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Balance s the beginning of the year 10,594,335 5493453
Add: Provisions made during the year 12,900,709 13,148,089
Less: Amount written back/utilized during the year o 7,326,142 £.047.207
Balance at the end of the year = T ieaesgez 10394335 |
36.  Contingent Liabilities and commitments:
There are no contingent liabilities and commitments by the Company.
37.  Related party disclosure as required by Ind AS 24 are given below:
A) Relationships:
Category | — Holding Company & Fellow Subsidiary
Ajanta Pharma Lid., India (Holding Company)
Category 11 - Directors, Key Management Personnel & their Relatives:
Dr. Ramesh Jhawar Director (APUL)
B) Following transactions werc carried out with related parties:
LsD
"&r.  Particulars Category 31 March2022 31 March 2021 |

Mo
1. Purchase of Goods:

Ajanta Pharma L., India I 78,422,274 82,789,469

| 2. Key Management Compensation:
Short Term Employee Benelits

Dy, Ramesh Jhawar 1 485,000 451,003
3. Re-imbursement from Ajanta Pharma 1 - 439,145
Ld., India
| 4, Commission paid to Ajanta Pharma 1 70,194 2,500
Ltd.
Charges for Shared Services | 108,791 23.603

| 6 Employee stock option 1 = 86,041
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38.  Related party disclosure as required by Ind AS 24 (Continued)

C) Amount outstanding as on 31 March 2022

T E——.
| Sr.  Particulars Category 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
No,

| . Trade Payable :

| Ajanta Pharma Lid., India 1 87,374,474 63,391,213

| S — —_— — — S— —

38.  Share based payments

The Holding Company has established “Employees Stock Options Scheme 20117 (*ESOS-
20117) and Share based Incentive Plan 2019 as approved in carlicr year by the shareholders
ol the Company and Compensation committee of Board of Directors for the key employees
of the Company. The options issued under the above scheme vest in a phased manner.

The Holding Company in 2019 introduced a compensation scheme, to award the scheme
participants (including employees of the Company), options of the holding Company hased
on the grant letter provided to such employees. The options have a graded vesting schedule
with the vesting date and exercise price. Each option under the grants will be convertible to
one share of the holding Company and will be convertible into equity shares only. As per
the plan, holder of vested options are entitled to purchase one equity share of holding
Company of 2 2 each for every option at an exercise price ol ¥ 2,

During the vear 3000 options have been granted by the Company under the aforesaid Share
based Incentive Plan 2019 to the employees of the Company.

Grant Date Na, nfnpﬁcm_ﬁ'n, of Option Exercise Price Vesting Period
Granted Caneelled
30 April 2021 3,00 g 2 30 April 2022 1o

30 April 2024

L N U

The options are granted at an exercise price which is in accordance with the relevant SER]
guidelines in force, at the time of such grants. Each option entitles the holder to exercise the
right to apply for and seek allotment of one equity share of 2 2/- each. The particulars of the
options under ESOS 2011 and Share based Incentive Plan 2019 are as under;

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Particulars

Nos, Nos,
Options outstanding as at the beginning of the Year® 4, [HH) 5500
Add: Options pranted during the Year 3,000 3,000
Less: Options exercised during the Year 4,000 4.500
Less: Options lapsed/cancelled during the Year - -
Options  outstanding as al the Year End 3,000 4000

* During the current year, holding company has reimbursed cost pertaining to options of
carlier years e Do
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38. Share based payments (Continued)

—————— “Weighted | Weighted
’ 31 March 2022 I‘!'"g*.uf Average Average
Particulars Nos Exercise Exercise Contractual
Prices (¥) Prices (%) life (Y ears)
Options outstanding as al the 4.000 24 20 .39
beginning of the year ’ ' :
Add: Options granted during the 1,000 a0 2.0 108
year ‘ ' - -
Less: Options exereised during 4.000 20 24 NA
the year ’ ' -
Less: Options lapsed/cancelled < ; : :
during the ycar
Options outstanding as al the 3000 20 1.0 .08
year el : ’ I I
| I —
“Particulars T JiMarch2021  Rangeof Weighted  Weighted
MNos. Exercise Average Average
Prices (%) Excrcise Contractual life
Prices (%) (Years)
Options outstanding as al the 5.500 20 10 0.70
beginning of the Year ’ L 7 )
Add: Options granted during the 3000 2.0 70 0.30
Yoar ; ’ ) :
ess: Options Exercised during the 4500 20 200 NA
Year - ‘ i :
Iess: Options lapsed/cancelled ) L s R
during the Year
Options outstanding as 3 the Y ear
=r 4,000 2.0 2.0 u.aﬂ

Description of the method and significant assumptions used during the year to estimate the

fair values of the options, including the following weighted average information:

o - f "\

A

oy
O

- ] ..
e
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38.  Share based payments (Continued)

Eiahh-s Weighted Average Information 1
Plan ESOS 2011 / Share Based Incentive Plan 2019
6,000 9,000 2,000 6,000 : 3000 3,000
option  eption option option 500 option oplion  option
) 26 27 30
Cirant date 262:,;‘]]; July 22 m';%t]'s.; 3 “m%t:; September 2(?;3;; Apri]
2016 2 N 2019 2021
26 26 22 30 ; 22 0
i::; dmeD:Jr August August  September November & A;%u;; August April
pLan 2016 2016 2017 2018 202 20m
Risk free rate (94) 7.3 1.3 7.5 74 52 52 4.53
E,’;F:r_:f;“"““’ 304 1103 o4 2 2 I lt03
Vuinti]ily el 2023 2023 17.2 1343 13.74 14.67 14.57
g;‘]”'d““" ek 053 053 0.43 0.5 055 07 076
Price of the
underlying share
in the market at 1.478 1,702 1,153 1.058 1,055 1.439 1.842
the time of option
grant {F)
Fair value of .
options (3) 1,453 1,453 1,142 1,043 1041 1,425 1,792
Exercise price (7) 2 2 2 2 2 2 2

Valuation of stock uptions

The fair value of stock options granted during the period has been measured usin g the Black -
Scholes option pricing model at the date of the grant. The Black-Schales option pricing
model includes assumptions regarding dividend yields, expected volatility, expected terms
and risk-free interest rates. They key inputs and assumptions used are as follows:

Share price; The closing price on NSE as on the date of grant has been considered for
valuing the options granted,

Exercise Price: Exercise Price is the market price or face value or such other price as
determined by the Remuneration and Compensation Committee.

Expected Volatility: The historical volatility of the stock till the date of grant has been
considered to calculate the fair value of the options.

Expected Option Life: Expected Life of option is the period for which the Com pany expects
the options 1o be live. The minimum life of a stock option is the minimum period before
which the options cannot be exercised and the maximum life is the period afler which the
options cannot be exercised.

Expected dividends: Expected dividend yield has been calculated as an average ol dividend
yields for four years preceding the date of the gram,

Risk free interest rate: The risk-free interest rate on the date of grant considered for the
calculation is the interest rate applicable for a maturity equal to the expected life of the
options based on the “ero-coupon yield curve for Government Securities,
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38.

39.

Share based payments (Continued)

These assumptions reflect management’s best estimates, but these assumptions involve
inherent market uncertaintics based on market conditions generally outside of the

Company's control. As a result, if other assumptions had bee
stock-based compensation expense could have been mater
management uses different assumptions in future periods, stoc
The estimat

expense could be materially impacted in future years.

options is charged to income on a straight-line basis over the requ
separately vesting portion of the award as if the award was, in-su

Income Tax

a,  Current iax
Current tax on profit for the year
Total Current Tax expenses
Deferred tax expense/(benefit)
Origination and reversal of timing difference
Adjustment for deferred tax of prior periods
Total Deferred Tax expenses
Total income tax recognised in the income statement

e =

e e
Income tax (expense) / benehit recognized in the income statement consists of the following:

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
1,179,596 4,083.275
1,179,5% 4,083 275
(415,253) (3,382,086)

24,8064 -

{390,389) (3.382.086)

789,207 701,189
B

n used in the current period,
fally impacted. Further, if
k based compensation
ed fair value of stock
isite service period of each
bstance, multiple awards.

—

h._ Reconciliation of effective tax ra.lr

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Accounting profit before income 1axes 3,580,090 3,252,560
Enacted tax rate in USA* 21% 21%
Computed expeeted tax (benefit) [ expenses 743,311 683,058
Adjustment for deferred tLax of prior periods 24,864 -
Expenses thal are not deductible in determining a 0
taxable profit 8 .
Expenses not deducted in hooks but allowed for 1ax (10853) )
purpose

State Taxes 31,798 27,121
Federal True-up - {0.280)
i fTect of instating opening balance of deferred tax - -
Effect of instating opening balance ol current tax - -
Income Lax expenses THS,207 701,189

| Effectivetax ratc 22% 22% |

*The tax rate used for the above reconciliation is the corporate tax rate applicable to the

Company under laﬂg‘iﬁ_?f United States of America.

/ oV

e
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Ajanta Pharma USA Inc

Notes to the Financial Statements
Jor the vear ended 31 March 2022

(Currency: USD)

39.

Income Tax (Continued)

P r—

¢. Recognised deferred asset and liability

(Continued)

L

Deferred tax Net deferrved tax |
Deferved tax asser liahilities assel/{liabilities)
31 March 31 March 31 3 3 31
2022 2021 March  March March March |
2022 2021 2022 2021 ]
Property .Plant and equipment - - 6970 61308 {56,970) (61.308) |
Leave Encashment 32478 31,392 - - 32678 330
Provision for Loss Allowance 45,239 45,306 - . 45,239 45,306
Guarantee Fees paid to holding eompany - 8.367 - - - 8.367
Stock option - 5249 2,129 - (9,129) 5,249
Chargebuacks, Rebates, Admin Fees 253,551  1.068.383 - - 253,551 1,068.383
263A Capitalization Cost 35,028 - - - 35,028 -
Sales Return fur expired goods 3525999 2338773 - = 3525999 2338773
|_er deferred tax asseu{liabi lities) 389249 3497470 66,008 BLI0Y 3826396 343662
r_______________________1
. Mavement in deferred tax balances 31 March 2022
MNet balance Recogni Net Deferred Deferred J
as on | sed in tax assel tax
April 2021 Profit liabilities |
anil loss
Property ,Plant and equipment (61.308) 4338 {26.970) - (36,970)
Leave Encashment 31,392 1,285 32678 32678 -
Provision for Loss Allewance 45,306 [67) 45 239 45,239 - |
Guarantee Fees paid to hobding Coftpany 5367 (8367} - {
Stk option 5249 (F4.378) 9,129} - (%129}
Churgebacks, Rebates. Admin Fees 1068383 (814,832) 253,551 253.55]
263A Capitalization Cost - 15028 35028 35,028 -
Sales Return for expired goods 2338773 1,187,225 3525999 3525909 3|
Net deferred tax asseu/(liabilities) 3,436,162 390,233 386396 3,892,494 (66, J
[ = = e W A e — e T e ———— _'||
d. Movement in deferred tay balances 31 March 2021
Net balance Recognis Net Delerred Deferre |
ason | ed in Lax assel o fax
April 2020 Prafit liahilitic
and loss [
Property, Plant and equipment {25,927 (35381 (61,308) - {61,308}
Leave Encashmient 24,369 7024 31,392 31392
Provision for Loss Allowance 27,004 18,302 45 306 45,306
Guarantee Fees paid 1o holding 5 1794 i 23
company
Stock option 7,081 {1.831) 5,249 5,249
Chargebacks, Rebates, Admin Fees 1,068 383 1.068 383 1,068 383 .
Sales Return for expired G - 2338773 2338773 2338773 -
e o
Net deferred tax asset/(liabilities) < . Vi 3,397,064 3,436,163 3497471 {61,308)




Ajanta Pharma USA Inc

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Currency: USD)

40. Impact of COVID —19 (Global pandemic)

The Company has taken into account all the possible impacts of COVID-19 in preparation
of these standalone financial statements, including but not limited to its assessment of,
liquidity and going concern assumption, recoverable values of its financial and non-financial
assels, impact on revenue recognition and impact on leases. The Company has carried out
this assessment based on available internal and external sources of in formation up to the date
of approval of these standalone financial statements and believes that the impact of COVID-
19 is not material to these financial statements and expects to recover the carrying amount
of its asscts. The impact of COVID-19 on the standalone financial statements may differ
from that estimated as at the date of approval of these standalone financial statements owing
to the nature and duration of COVID-19.

41.  Previous year figures have been regrouped / re-classified wherever necessary, 10 confirm 10
current period’s classification in order to comply with the requirements of the amended
Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013 effective from 01 April 2021,

42.  The Company has one segment of activity namely “Pharmaceuticals™.

In terms of our report attached

For BS R & Co. LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Ajanta Pharma USA Inc.
Firm Registration No: 101 248W/W-100022

Yogesh M. Agrawal
Director
DIN : 00073673

Srecja Ma
Partner
Membership No: 111410

Mumbai
10 May 2022

Mumbai
10 May 2022
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Independent Auditor's Report
To the Members of Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Ltd.(Conselidated)

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

The accounts of AJANTA PHARMA MAURITIUS LTD and AJANTA PHARMA MAURITIUS
INTERNATIONAL LTD. are being audited under the local laws of the country by the statutory auditor
for the period Ist Jan 2021 to 3lst December 2021. Financial Statements of AJANTA PHARMA
MAURITIUS LTD. consolidated with Ajanta Pharma Mauritius Intemational Ltd for the period 1st April
2021 to 31st March 2022. The holding company Ajanta Pharma Limited (India) follows the period 1st
April 2021 to 31st March 2022. In order to consolidate the accounts of Ajanta Pharma Mauritius Ltd
(Consolidated) with that of the holding company, we have been appointed by the management of the
company to audit the reinstated accounts of AJANTA PHARMA MAURITIUS LTD. (Consolidated) for
the period st April 2021 to 31st March 2022 under the companies Act in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles in India (Ind AS).

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Ind AS financial statements of AJANTA
PHARMA MAURITIUS LTD. (CONSOLIDATED) (“the Company™) (hereinafter referred to as the
‘Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as
“the Group”), comprising of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022, the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the
Consolidated Ind AS financial statements™) prepared in accordance with group accounting
policies followed by Ajanta Pharma Ltd. These Consolidated financial statements have been
prepared solely to enable Ajanta Pharma Ltd. to prepare its consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid Consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, and
profit/loss, and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.




Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these Consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process in accordance with the group accounting policies followed by Ajanta.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but i1s not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can anse from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.




(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Agt, ead with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014,

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2022
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March,
2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure A",

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

I. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position,

ii. The Company has not entered into any long-term contracts including derivative contracts,

requiring provision under the applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable
losses: and

iil. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

for G.RModi & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s regist_m?n number: 112617W-=

CA Swapnil Modi

Partner

Membership number: 107574
Mumbai

Date : 28th April 2022

UDIN No 22107574AHZQXG3903



Annexure - A to the Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (*the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of AJANTA PHARMA
MAURITIUS LTD. (Consolidated) (“the Company™) as of 31 March 2022 in conjunction with
our audit of the Consolidatedfinancial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note")
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and 1f such controls operated effectively in all matenal respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a matenal weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed nisk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a matenal effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, matenial
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may detenorate.

Opinion

Inpﬁur opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Jor G.R.Modi & Co

Chartered Accountants
Firm’s regstratiop’ number: 112617TW

wapnil Modi

Partner

Membership number: 107574
Mumbai

Date : 28th April 2022

UDIN No 22107574AHZQXG3903



Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited

Consolidated Balance Sheet
ax alf 31 March 2022

{Currency: MUR)

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Note MAL. Hs MAL. Rs
Assels
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 8 36,258.113 35.858.571
Right 1o use assets 8 (0 2197914
Financial assets
livestments 9 - -
Other financial asscts 1] 1.157.322 1,177,322
Total non-current assets 37415435 39,233 RO8
Current assets
Inventories I 5549 600,987 86,498 910
Financial assets
Investments 12 - 201,960,158
Trade receivables 13 297315048 55.389.040
Cash and cash equivalents 14 73,507,667 T7.193,100
Other current assets I5 395,281 106,866,093
Total current assets 931,018,983 627,907,301
Total asseis 968,434,418 667,141,109
Equity And Liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital [ 61,379,100 1,379 100
Other Equity 17 369,351,634 323.861.460
Total equity 630.730.734 585.240,560
Liabilities
Non current liabilities
Lease liahility I8 - 2 469,066
Current linbilities
Trade pavables 14 252,694,224 .
Other current liabilities 20 85,009,460 79431 483
Total current liabilities 337.703.684 79.431.483
Total equity and liabilities 068,434,418 667.0141,109

Significant accounting policies

The notes referred 1o above form an integral pant of the consolidated financial satements

As per our report of even date attached

In terms of our report attached
For G. R. Modi & Co.

Chartered Accountanis
HCATFRN : 112617W)

Swapnil Modi
Partner
Mumbai, 28 Apr, 2022

UDIN : 2210757T4AHAOXN G303

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
of Ajanta Pharma (Mauritivs) Limited

—tgg )

Yogesh M. Agrawal
Director



Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Currency: MUR)

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Note MALL Rs MALL Rs
Income
Revenug fran operations 21 350,620,646 1.470,328,987
Other income 22 (3. 210,016) 92,866,374
Total income 545,410,630 1.563,195,361
Eapense
Cost of materials consumed 23 16,326,499 12,554,680
Purchase of stock-in-trade 4 645,298,544 936,776,561
Changes in inventories of finished goods'work-in-progress/stock-in-trade 25 (396.322,032) (152,771,918}
Employee benefits expenses 26 GB.518.853 23.953.146
Finance costs 27 172836 326032
Depreciation and amontisation expense 28 4.370.903 4,460,393
Other expenses 24 139,110,732 360,115,472
Total expenses 497,776,337 LIRS 414,465
Profit before tax 47,634,293 377, 780.5%
Tax expense
Current tax 144,119 16.652.732
Deffered tax
Profit for the vear 45,490,174 361,128,164
Earning per equity share (Basic & Diluted) {Face value MURLI0/-) 31 T4.11 38836

Significant accounting policies
The notes referred 10 above form an imtegral pan of the consolidated financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

In terms of sur report attached
For G, R Modi & Co,
Chartered Accountants
(ICALFRN ;112

Swapnil Modi
Partner
Mumbai, 28 Apr, 2022

VNN : 22107STIAHZQXGI003

For and on hehalf of Board of Directors
of Ajanta Pharma (Maurities) Limited

—/7 RV VN

Yogesh M. Agrawal

Director

Mumbai, 28 Apr, 2022




Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow
Jor the vear ended 31 March 2022

{Currency: MUR)
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
MAU. Rs MAU. Rs
A, Cash Mow from operating activities
Profi before tax 47,634,293 377,780,896
Adjustment for
Depreciation and amortisation expense 4 370,915 4 460593
Finance costs 172,836 336,132
Unrealised foreign exchange difference - .
Operating cash Now before working capital changes 52,178,034 382,567,421
Changes in working capital
Decrease / (increase) in irde and other receivables (241.926,008) 115348 98]
Diecrease [ (mcrease) in other non curment assels 20,000 [
Decrease / (increase) m other current assetls 106,270,812 22359431
Decrease [ (increase) i inventorics (373, 102.07T) (166,897,510}
Increase / (decrease) i other current habilities 680519

Note :

Ingcrease / (decrease) in other long lerm provisions
Increase / (decrease) in short tenm provisions
Inerease [ (decrease) in trade pavables

5,577,977

252,694,224

JT4.058 841

Cash generated from operations (198,287,038)
Net income 1ax paid (2,144,119 (16,652,732}
Net cash generated from operating activities (200,431.157) 357,406,109

Cash Mow from investing activities

Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment tncluding capita

Capital expenditure on right 1o wse asset

(2.572.531)

200,960,158

(1.134,085)

(201,960.158)

Purchase of non-current investments

Purchase of non-current investments . 50,847,759
Net cash used in investing activities 199,387,626 (143,246.484)
Cash flow from Minancing activities

Repayment of lease liability (including mierest thereon) (2,469 066) (2,189 960)

Interest pard (172.836) (326,132)

Dividend paid - (285 31E.000)
Net cash used in financing activities (2.641,902) (287.834,002)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (3,685,432) (73.674,468)
Cash and cash equivalents as al the beginming of the year 77193, 098 150,867 506
Cash and cash equivalents as ot the end of the vear 73,507,665 TT.193,09%

Figures in hrackets indicates outflow

| The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under Tndirect Method” as set out in Accounting Standard 7 (Ind AS - 7)

“Statement of Cash Flow™ under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013,

2. Cash comprises cash on hand, current accounts and deposits with banks. Cash cguivalents are sholrt-term balances {with an original
maturity of three months or bess rom the date of scquisition).

Significunt accounting policies

The notes referred 1o abave form an intégral part of the consolidated financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

In terms of our report attached
For €. K. Modi & Co,
Chartered Accountan

(ICALF

Swapnil Modi
Partner
Mumbai, 28 Apr, 2022

UDIN : 221075T4AHZOQXG3903

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Ajanta Pharma (Mauritios) Limited

ékf‘- e~ )

Yogesh M. Agrawal

Director

Mumbai, 28 Apr, 2022



Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Jar the vear ended 31 Maveh 2022

(Curmency: MUR)

A. Eguity Share Capital MUR
“:::;; " Restated
Share Halance wl the Changes in
Balance as at Caplial dire beginning of the  equity share  Balance as at 31
01 April 2021 SR current capital during  Muarch 2022
period reporting the vear
period
crron
Authorised @ A iR . 180, 0000, O 0T . TN, D0, 00 T
Issued : 61, 379, 100,00 - &1 379 100,00 - 61 379, 10000
Subscribed & Pabld up: 61,379, 100,00 - Gl 3709, 1041 (1 - AR FLRIURLT

. Oiher Equity

Particubirs Capital Securities General Share Based Hetained Total Non- Total Equity
Redemption  Premiam Reserve Payment Earnings Controlling
Heserve Account Heserve Interests
As at 1 April 2020 . - IR0, 192,754 . 67 858 540 448,051,296 . 448,051,296
Profit for the pervod - . - 60,128 164 361,128,164 - 361,128,164
Iher comprehensive income - 2 - - - - -
Totl comprebensive income = - - - 360,125,164 361,128,164 361,125,164
Transfer to CGreneral reserve - - - -
Davidend Pasd (285,318 001y (2RS, 318,000 {285, 3 1R 000

At 31 March 2021 ~ - 380,192,756 : 143,668,704 533861460 —SZL861,450
Prrodfit for the period 45,490,174 45,490,174 - 454174
Chther comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income - - - - 45,490 174 45,490,174 . A5, 490,174
Davadend Pasd . - < i

F il - - mil“lm - ll!I'II .El‘.fﬂ 56925!1534 - mﬁ. 1,634

See mccompanying notes forming part of the financial statements

In terms of our report attuched
For (. K. Maodi & Co,

Chartered Ac
: F | W ::‘

For and on hehall of Board of Directors of
Ajanta Pharma { Mavritius) Limited

—ep g~y

Swapnil Modi
Partner

Mumbal, 28 Apr, 2022
UDIN | I2E07STAAHZONGIN0G



Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as on 31 March 2022

1.

un

Corporate Information

Ajanta Pharma (Mauritivs) Lid. is a limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in
Mauritius and is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ajanta Pharma Lid.. India. The address of its
registered office is located at BPML Building, Roval Road, Goodlands, Mauritius. The Consolidated
Financial statement (*CFS™) comprises the Company and its subsidiary (referred 10 collectively as
the “Group™).

The Group is primarily involved in manufacturing and marketing of speciality pharmaceutical
finished dosages.

The Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 have been reviewed by
the Audit Committee and subsequently approved by Company’s Board of Directors at it's meeting
held on 28 April, 2022,

Basis of Preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in all material aspects in accordance
with the recognition & measurement principles laid down in Indian Accounting Standards
(hereinafier referred to as the ‘Ind AS’) read with Rule 4 of the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act and accounting
principles generally accepted in India.

These financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost
basis, except otherwise stated.

Basis of Consolidation

These consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statement of the Company and its
wholly owned subsidiary Ajamta Pharma Mauritius (Int’l) Lid. The financial statements of the
Company and its wholly owned subsidiary have been consolidated on a line by line basis by adding
together the book values of like items of assets, liabilities. incomes and expenses after eliminating
intra-group balances, intra-group transactions and unrealised profits resulting there from and are
presented to the extent possible, in the same manner as the Group's independent financial
statements. The statement of profit and loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the equity holders of the Company.

These consolidated financial statements of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiary have been
consolidated using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar
circumstances. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries 1o
bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies. The [financial
statements of the subsidiaries used in consolidation are drawn up 1o the same reporting date as that
of the Company i.¢., year ended 31 March 2022,

Functional and Presentation Currency:
Functional Currency of the Company is Mauritian Rupee (MUR),
Rounding of Amounts

All amounts disclosed in the linancial statemems and notes have been rounded off to the nearest
CroTes,




Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as on 31 March 2022

6.

7.1

Current / non-current classification:

The assets and liabilities in the balance sheet are presented based on currentnon-current
classification.

An asset is current when it is:

» Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle, or

* Held primarily for the purpose of trading, or

* Lxpected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

s Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as Non-Current.

A liability is current when it is:

s Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle, or

s Held primarily for the purpose of trading, or

* Due to be settled within twelve months afier the reporting period. or

* There is no unconditional right 1o defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result
in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.
All other liabilities are treated as Non-Current.

Operating Cycle
An operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation
in cash or cash equivalents.

Based on the nature of products / activitics of the group and the normal time between acquisition of
assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the group has determined its operating cycle
as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

Significant Accounting Policies

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are included
in the assets carrying amount or recognised as a separale asset as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight line method to write off the cost of assets, to their residual
values over their estimated useful life as follows:

Particulars Useful Life
Leaschold Improvement | 20 years
Furniture, Fixtures & Fittings | 2 to 6 years
Office Equipments 210 4 vears

Plant & Machinery. | Sw20years
Motor Vehicles 5 years

__.A’
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amount, it is written down immediately to its recoverable amount. Gains and losses on disposals of
property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
included in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise 10 a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets
Classification

The Group classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss, on the basis of its business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flows characteristics of the financial asset.

Imitial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, {inancial assets are classified in two broad categories:

= Financial asscts at fair value (FVTPL / FVTOCI)

» Financial assets at amortised cost

When assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognised in the statement of
profit and loss (i.c. fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)), or recognised in other comprehensive
income (i.e. fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)).

Financial Assets measured at amortised cost (net of any write down for impairment, if any)

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost when asset is held within a business model, whose
objective is 1o hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows and contractual terms of the asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest. Such
financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method less impairment, if any. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement
of profit and loss.

Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (“FVTOCI™)
Financial assets under this category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value, when asset is held within a business model, whose objective is to hold assets for both

collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets. Fair value movements are recognized
in the other comprehensive income.,

Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (“FVTPL")

Financial assets under this category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value with all changes recognised in profit or loss.
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Investment in Equity Instruments

Equity instruments which arc held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. All other equity
instruments are classified as FVTOCI. Fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends,
are recognised in the other comprehensive income. There is no recycling of the amounts from other
comprehensive income 1o profit or loss,

Investment in Debt Instruments

A debt instrument is measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCIL. Any debt instrument, which does
not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FYOCL, is classified as at FVTPL.
Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition of Financial Assets

A financial asset is primarily derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired or the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset.

Impairment of Financial Assets
In accordance with Ind - AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for

measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets that are debt instruments
and trade receivables.

Financial Liabilities

Classification

The Group classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost or FVTPL.
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and. in the case of loans, borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafis and derivative financial instruments,

Subsequent measurement

Financial labilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition of Financial Liabilitics

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligat]
or expires. When an existing financial Habilit’ /
substantially different terms, or the terms of ap'e
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7.6

exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

Derivative Financial Instrument

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts to mitigate its
foreign currency risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on
the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair
value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial
liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Inventories

Raw materials and packing materials are valued at lower of cost (on moving weighted average basis)
and net realisable value, cost of which includes dutics and taxes. Cost of imported raw materials and
packing materials lying in bonded warchouse includes the amount of customs duty. Finished
products including traded goods and work-in-progress are valued at lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is arrived on weighted average basis.

The cost of Inventories have been computed to include all cost of purchases, cost of conversion,
appropriate share of fixed production overheads based on normal operating capacity and other
related cost incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and selling expenses necessary to make the sale.

Slow and non-moving material, products nearing expiry, defective inventory are fully provided for
and valued at net realisable value.

Goods and materials in transit are valued at actual cost incurred up to the date of balance sheet,
Materials and other items held for use in production of inventories are not written down, if the
finished products in which they will be used are expecied to be sold at or above cost.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise of cash on hand and cash at bank including fixed
deposit/highly liquid investments with original maturity period of three months or less that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value,

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-
term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafls as they are considered an
integral part of the group’s cash management.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method. whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash
flows. The cash flow from operating, investing and financing activities of the Group are segregated.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Revenue Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are normally recorded at the exchange rate
prevailing on the date of the transaction,
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Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the year-end are re-measured at the exchange
rate prevailing on the balance sheet date. Mon-monetary foreign currency items are carried at cost.

Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on settlement or on restatement is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Revenue Recognition

Revenue recognition under Ind AS 115 (applicable from | April 2018)

Under Ind AS 115, the group recognized revenue when (or as) a performance obligation was
satisfied. i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods underlying the particular performance obligation were
transferred to the customer.

Further, revenue from sale of goods is recognized based on a 5-5tep Methodology which is as
follows:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation

Sule of Goads
The group applied Ind AS 115 using the modified retrospective approach.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price adjusted for discounts and rebates, which is
specified in a contract with customer. Revenue are net of estimated returns and taxes collected from
customers,

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized at point in time when control is transferred to the
customer and it is probable that consideration will be collected. Control of goods is transferred upon
the shipment of the goods to the customer or when goods is made available to the customer.

The transaction price is documented on the sales invoice and payment is generally due as per agreed
credit terms with customer.

The consideration can be fixed or variable. Variable consideration is only recognised when it is
highly probable that a significant reversal will not occur.

Sales return is variable consideration that is recognised and recorded based on historical experience,
market conditions and provided for in the year of sale as reduction from revenue. The methodology
and assumptions used to cstimate returns are monitored and adjusted regularly in line with trade
practices, historical trends. past experience and projected market conditions.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised with reference to the Effgctive Interest Rate method.

Dividend income
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Dividend from investment is recognised as revenue when right to receive is established.
Income from Export Benefits and (ther Incentives

Export benefits available under prevalent schemes are accrued as revenue in the yvear in which the
goods are exported and / or services are rendered only when there reasonable assurance that the
conditions attached to them will be complied with, and the amounts will be received.

Employvee Benefits

All employee benefits pavable wholly within twelve months rendering service are classified as
short-term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries. wages, short-term compensated absences,
performance incentives ete. and the expecled cost of bonus, ex-gratia are recognised during the
period in which the emplovee renders related service.

(i) Defined contribution plans
Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as expense when emplovees have
rendered services entitling them to such benefits.

The Group pays Social Security Cost as per local regulations. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted
for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognized as employee benefit
expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent
that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

For employees who are not covered by a pension plan, the net present value of severance
allowances payable under the Employment Rights Act 2008 is provided for. The obligations
arising under this item are not funded.

(ii))  Share-based compensation

The Group has no share-based compensation plan.
Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised
as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an
adjustment to the borrowing costs. Transaction costs are charged to statement of profit and loss as
financial expenses over the term of borrowing.

Lease

The Group’s lease asset class primarily consists of leases for land and buildings. The Group assesses
whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or comtains, a lease if
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset, the group assesses whether: (1) the contract involves the use of an identified asset
(2) the group has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period
of the lease and (3) the group has the right to direct the use of the asset.
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At the date of commencement of the lease. the group recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU™) and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with
a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and
low value leases, the group recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the
lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that
they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost. which comprises the initial amount of the
lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the
lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use asseis are evaluated for
recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the
higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset
basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other
assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) 10
which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease
pavments. The lease payments are discounted using the generally accepted interest rate. Lease
liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the
Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease
payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

Leases for which the group is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the
contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

For operating leases. rental income is recognized on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

Transition

Effective | April. 2019, the group adopted Ind AS 116 “*Leases™ and applied the standard to all lease
contracts existing on 1 April, 2019 using the modilied retrospective method and has taken the
cumulative adjustment to retained camings, on the date of initial application. Consequently, the
group recorded the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments discounted at the
generally accepted interest rate and the right of use asset at its carrying amount as if the standard had
been applied since the commencement date of the lease, but discounted at the generally accepted
interest rate at the date of initial application. Comparatives as at and for the year ended March 31,
2019 have not been retrospectively adjusted and therefore will continue to be reported under the
accounting policies included as part of our Annual Report for year ended March 31, 2019.

On transition, the adoption of the new standard resulted in recognition of 'Right ol Use' asset of
MUR 6.593.744 and a lease liability of MUR 6.593,744. The cumulative effect of applying the
standard, amounting to MUR Nil was debited to retained earnings. net of taxes. The effect of”
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116 will result in an increase in cash inflows from operating activities and an increase in cash
outflows from financing activities on account of lease payments.

The tollowing is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application:

a. Applied a single discount rate 1o a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic
environment with a similar end date.

b. Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less
than 12 months of lease term on the date of initial application.

¢. Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of
initial application.

d. Applied the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases.
Accordingly, Ind AS 116 is applied only to contracts that were previously identified as leases
under Ind AS 17,

The interest rate applied to lease liabilities as at 1 April. 2019 is 7%.
Earnings Per Share

Basic carnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity
holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period. Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the
equity holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for
deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that
could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares, The dilutive potential
equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity shares been actually issued at
fair value. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period,
unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each
period presented.

Income Taxes
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred income tax,

Income tax expense is recognized in net profit in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent
that it relates 1o items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in other
comprehensive income. Current income tax for current and prior periods is recognized at the amount
expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities, using the respective Country’s tax rates
and tax laws that have been enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet, if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, o realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultancously.

Deferred income 1ax assets and liabilities are measured using respective Country’s tax rates and tax
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected 1o
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apply to taxable income in the vears in which those temporary differences are expected to be
recovered or settled. The effect of changes in tax rates on deferred income tax assets and liabilities is
recognized as income or expense in the period that includes the enactment or the substantive
enactment date. A deferred income tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax losses can
be utilized. The Group offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilitics, where it has a legally
enforceable right 1o set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realize the asset and settle the lability simultaneously,

Deferred income taxes are not provided on the undistributed earnings of subsidiaries where it is
expected that the earings of the subsidiary will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

Dividends to Sharcholders

Annual dividend distribution to the sharcholders is recognised as a liability in the period in which
the dividends are approved by the sharcholders, Any interim dividend paid is recognised on
approval by Board of Directors, Dividend pavable is recognised directly in equity.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, Contingent Assets and Commitments

General

Provisions (legal and constructive) are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made.

Provisions (excluding retirement benefits and compensated absences) are not discounted to its
present value and are determined based on bes! estimate required to settle the obligation at the
balance sheet date: These are reviewed at cach balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current
hest estimates,

If there is any expectation that some or all of the provision will be reimbursed, the reimbursement is
recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense
relating 1o a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any virtually certain
reimbursement.

[f the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risk specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of:

s A present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation:
A present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimates is possible;
A possible obligation arising from past events, unless the probability of outflow of resources is
remote.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised but disclosed in the Consolidated Financial Statemients.
Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the Financial Statements.

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parics lor
completion of assets and Non-cancellable operating lease. [
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Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each balance
sheet date.

Asset Retirement Obligation

Assel retirement obligations (ARO) are provided for those operating lease arrangements where the
Company has a binding obligation at the end of the lease period 1o restore the leased premises in a
condition similar to inception of lease. ARO are provided at the present value of expected costs to
settle the obligation using discounted cash flows and are recognised as part of the cost of that
particular asset, The cash flows are discounted at a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific
to the decommissioning liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised in the income
statement as a finance cost. The estimated future costs of decommissioning are reviewed annually
and adjusted as appropriate. Changes in estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied are
added to or deducted from the cost of the asset.

7.15  Fair value measurement

The Group measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet
date in accordance with Ind AS 113.

Financials Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following
material items in the statement of financial position:

*  Derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value received from Bank.

= Mutual Funds are measured at fair values as per Net Asset Value (NAV).

s Emplovee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) at fair values as per Actuarial Valuation Report.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or settle a liability in an ordinary
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

I'he fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it 1o another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are

categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

- I aual 1 Mstad fimadinetadl marlat marmane m aative maekate e idantiaal aceate e llahilitiae

Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.

Statement of cashflow
Jor the vear ended 31 March 2022

{Currency: PHP)

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
pip Pip
A, Cash Mow from operating activities

Profit before tax 318833417 242,776,368

Adustment for
Depreciation and amortisation expense 9,279,595 9,901,780
Finance costs | 428,299 2,208,651
Operating cash Mow before working capital changes J1ms4L3N 154,886,799

Change in working capital
g, PR i [t T e . TR N FAY AT OW A EO YT BT
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For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of
the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

7.16  Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing
standards. There is no such notification which would have been applicable from 1 April 2022.

7.17  Critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that attect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. However,
uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets or liabilities in future periods.

(a} Arrangement containing lease
At the inception of an arrangement, the Group determines whether the arrangement is or
contains a lease. At the inception or on reassessment of an arrangement that contains a lease,
the Group separates payments and other consideration required by the arrangement into
those for the lease and those for the other elements on the basis of their relative fair values.

The Group has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements that such contracts are in the nature of operating leases,

(h) Multiple element contracts with vendors

The Group has entered into multiple element contracts with vendors for supply of goods and
rendering of services. The consideration paid is/may be determined independent of the value
of supplies received and services availed. Accordingly, the supplies and services are
accounted for based on their relative fair values to the overall consideration. The supplics
with finite life under the contracts (as defined in the significant accounting policies) have
been accounted under Property, Plant and Equipment and/or as Intangible assets, since the
Group has economic ownership in these assets. The Group believes that the current
treatment represents the substance of the arrangement,

(c) Determination of functional currency

Each entity in the group determines its own functional currency (the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency. Ind AS 21, “The
Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates™ prescribes the factors to be considered for
the purpose of determination of functional currency. Management uses its judgement to
determine the functional currency that most faithfully represents the economic effects of the
underlying transactions, events and conditions.

(d) Property, Plant and equipment
Determination of the estimated useful life of tangible assets and the assessment as to which
compaonents of the cost may be capitalized. Useful life of tangible assets is based on the life
of useful lives/rates prescribed by the GAAPs of the respective countries. Assumptions also
need to be made, when the Company assesses. whether an asset may be
which components of the cost of the as capitalised,
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(g)

(h)

(i)

Intangible Assets
Internal technical or user team assess the remaining useful lives of Intangible assets.
Management believes that assigned useful lives are reasonable.

Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations

The obligation arising from the defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial
assumptions. Key actuarial assumptions include discount rate, trends in salary escalation
and vested future benefits and life expectancy. The discount rate is determined with
reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on the government bonds. The
period to maturity of the underlying bonds correspond to the probable maturity of the post-
emplovment benefit obligations.

Recognition of deferred tax assets and income tax

Deferred tax asset is recognised for all the deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilised. The management assumes that taxable profits will be
available while recognising deferred tax assets.

Management judgment is required for the calculation of provision for income taxes and
deferred tax asscts and liabilities. The Company reviews at each balance sheet date the
carrying amount of deferred tax assets. The factors used in estimates may differ from actual
outcome which could lead 1o significant adjustment to the amounts reported in the financial
statements.

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations and the
amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the wide range of international business
relationships and the long-term nature and complexity of existing contractual agreements,
differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes
1o such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already
recorded. The Group establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for possible
consequences of audits by the tax authorities of the respective countries in which it operates.
The amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous
tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the
responsible tax authority. Such differences of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of
issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the respective country.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits, future tax
planning strategies and recent business performances and developments,

Recognition and measurement of other provisions

The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the
probability of an outflow of resources, and on past experience and circumstances I_mnwn al
the balance sheet date. The actual outflow of resources at a future date may, therefore, vary
from the figure included in other provisions.

Contingencies - 1 e
Management judgement is required for estimating the possible outflow ul‘rcs:{:um::‘. if any,
in respect of contingencies/claim/litigations against the Group as it is not possible to predict
the outcome of pending matters with accuracy.

Allowance for uncollected accounts receivable and advances
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Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their normal value as reduced by
appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Individual trade receivables are
written off’ when management seems them not collectible. Impairment is made on the
expected credit losses, which are the present value of the cash shortfall over the expected
life of the financial assets.

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumption about risk of default
and expected loss rates. Judgement in making these assumption and selecting the inputs to
the impairment calculation are based on past history. existing market condition as well as
forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Insurance claims
Insurance claims are recognised when the Group has reasonable certainty of recovery,

Impairment reviews

An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit (‘CGU")
exceeds its recoverable amount, Recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less costs
to sell and its value in use. The value in use caleulation is based on a discounted cash flow
model. In calculating the value in use, certain assumptions are required to be made in
respect of highly uncertain matters, including management’s expectations of growth in
EBITDA, long term growth rates; and the selection of discount rates to reflect the risks
involved.
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{Currency: MURY

] Froperty, Plant and Equipment IN MUR

Bl Current Year

Giross Hbock (Com O Deesned Comr) Accusnulared Depreciation’ A 1an Nel Hlock
e 01 Apnl 2021 Additions | Dusposals | Adjustments | 31 March 2022 | 01 Apnl 2021 F: the Dispasals | Adjsamernsta |31 March 2033 31 Masch 2022 | 31 Mar 2021
- - a - = = o & . - N
Froperty, Plant & Equipment
Leasehold Improvement 6485235 - 495,233 4ATIZ6 10,330 . LI Ll 1 1012579 2022909
Mlant & Machincry READ 446 1.50% 402 - BOOLRAR | oleb0.414 1315951 - 61,970 368 17038483 | 27749032
Furniture & fixtwre TIMERT? - T ETY 5837 M6 262 963 . B, 100,911 1,293 966 1.556,931
Office Equipmiemn 1,050,040 377030 - 19427170 17,530,618 415,604 . 17546222 14805948 1519422
Vehicles E323.407 G590, 000 - 013407 5727630 168,140 - 5895770 3,117,637 258950
Cotmpamers 470,082 - 470,052 55552 - 55,552 S14, 500 | 4048,500.00
Tatal 130,143,057 1,872,532 - - IRLTIS.A00 | S4.M84488 | 2,171,990 - - W, 45T ATS 36,358,110 | ISESEST]
|Previous Year 129, 008972 134,083 - - 130043087 | 92022007 | 1262478 - - BI04 ARS IS RSE AT | M6 9RG6. M4
() |Other Intangible Assets

IE!' 10 use 5,593,744 . - 593 744 43958%0 | 2197013 - 6,593,714 i 1.197.914
Tatal 6,591,744 - - - 6,543,744 4395830 [ 197915 - = 6,593,744 (] 197014
Previoos Vear 6593, 744 . - - 6593744 L191.518 | 2197815 - - 4 353 530 2197914 4,355 829
[ Tatal Fixed Assets [ 3e2sm113 | 3908648 |
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(Cherrency: MUR)

9 her Nop-Current Financial Assels

{Unsecured, Considered Good unless otherwise stated )

Security Deposits

11 loventories
Raw materials
Packing materials
Waork-m-process
Fimshed goods
Stock-in-trade
Clearing Churges of Usbek Invemory

12 Investments (Current)

Investment @t Famr Value through sttement of Profit or Loss

In Mutaal Funds (Chsoted)

LE Beacon Fund

13 Trade Receivahbles
Unsecured. considered good unless otherwise stated
Considered good

14 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on Hand
Balance with Banks - In current pocounts

15 (hher Current Assels
Advances o Helated Partses (APL)
Advances to Emplovees
Advances to Suppliers
Balance with StvtutorviGovt. Authonties

16 Equity Share Capital
Authorised :
Orrehinary Shares of MUR 100 each

lssued, Subscribed & Paid up :
Ordinary Shares of MUR 100 each fully paid up

31 March 2012

31 March 2021

MALL Hs ALALL Rs
1157322 1LITT.322
1157322 1,177,322
7 19.828.124
R 3,391,831
i 1115481
13013763 6014917
dib, 185,062 156,118,157

8,402,162 -
550,600,987 156,498,010

Fage Value 2 No, of Units ®
ADIVAN . 201,960,138
{500,000}

= 201,960,158
297 315,048 53 380040
207 315,048 55,359,040
47,880 9,724
73,4509 788 77153378
73,507,667 77093100
. 90,923 163
19177 1671399
2 | 286,979
486, 104 2984 552
595,281 116 866,093

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2021 31 March 2021
Sumber of Shares MALL Hs Number of Shares MALL Rs
100,000 103,000, D00 1 000,000 1 OKHD, OO0
613,791 61 379,10 613,791 61 37910
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.I_L'|.u11.11cr MUR)

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
MALL Rs MAL, Ha

(@) Reconcilintion of number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the vear :
31 March 2022 31 March 2012 31 March 2021 31 March 2021
Number of Shares MALL Bs Number of Shares MALL Bs

Mumber of shares outstanding as at the begmmning of the vear 613,791 1379100 613,791 61,319 100
Add - Number of shares allotted as fully paid-up duning the

year

Less Mumber of shares bought back during the vear B E

Mumber of shares outstanding as at the end of the vear 613,791 61,379,100 613,791 61,379,100

() Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shures

The company has issued only one class of ordmary shares with voling rights having a par value of MUR 100 per share

During the year endexd 31 March 2020, amount per share of diveaderid recognised as distributions 1o equity sharcholders was MUR 71128 per equity share (Pr ¥r MUR 514
In the event of hquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be eatitied to receive remuning asset of the company. The distribution will be 1n propartion to th
of equity shares held by shareholders

(¢ ) Details of equity sharcholders holding more than 5%

Name of Sharchalder 31 Murch 2022 3 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2021
Number ol Shares Number of Shares Vo Holding

Aganis Pharma Ltd | India 613,791 L0 D 6E3.T91 ILLARLH

() Shares reserved for issue under options Ml il il Wil

17 OTHER EQUITY

Geeneral Reserve
Balanee at the beginning of the year 380,192,736 3R, 192,736
Add  Transferred from Statement of Profit & Loss 2 -
3R0.192,756 350,192,756
Exschange Fluctuation Reserve
Surplos in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Balance at the beginning of the vear 143 668,704 67 K54, 540
Profit for the vear 45.490,174 361128 164
Less. Appropristions
-Mhvidend Paid on Equity Shares 285,318,000
-Transferred from retained carmings
Balance ot the year end 189,155 878 143,668,704
Tatal Ohther Equiny 569,351 634 S23.861.460
18 TRADE PAYABLES 252 694 224
252604 224
19 Lesse linbility
[ease lability - 2469 (s
2469 066

20 Other Corrent Linbilities
Onthier Pavables 85009460 79431 483
RE.009 460 79,431,483
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(Cgrency: MUR)

21 HRevenue from Operations
Sale of Froduecis
Finished Goods
Stock-mn-Trade

22 (her Income
Exchange Difference [Net)
Crim from Mutual Fund Invesiment
Miscellaneous Income

13 Coost of Material Consumed
Raw Material consumed
Opening Stock
Add - Purchases

Less: Closing Stock
Raw Material Consumed
Packing Materal Consumed
Opening Stock
Add ' Purchases

Less: Closing S1ock
Packing Material Consumed

24 Purchase of Stock-in-Trade (Kelated Party)
Purchase of Stock-in-Trade ((Others)

15 Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade
Inventories af the end ol the vear @
Work-m-Process
Fimished Goods
Stock-in-trde
(A}
Imventories a1 the beginning of the vear ;
Work-in-Process
Frmished Goods
Stock-in-trade
(B
EfMect of foreign exchange translation
Work-in-progress
Finished goods
Stock-in-frade
()
Totul changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade :
Work-in-Process
Fimshed Goods
Stock-in-Trade

Total changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-progress and Stock-in-T  (B) - (A} + (0}

26 Empolvee Benefit Expenses
Salaries, Wages. Bonus and Allowances
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds
Saff Welfare Expenses

27 Finance Cost
O bease [inbility

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
MAU. s MALL Rs
201,412 401 69,350,124
3492708245 1 400,978 863
850,620,646 1,470,328 987
(6,124, 79%) B1.741.734
$41 449 3,278,145
73.333 1,446,495
(5.210,016) 92,866,374
19,828,124 5,972,891
10,242,729 23,392,813
30,070,853 29,365,704

’ 15828124
0,070,853

9,537,580
33091 831 izl am2
2,863 815 3287450
6,255,646 f,408 931
. 3,39] 83
6,255,640 1017, 100
36,326,499 12,554,680
826515217 236,776,561
118,783,317 -
3 1,115,881
13,003,763 6,044,917
546,587,224 1561 18,157
S55 600,987 163,278,955
1115881 3.342.643
h044,917 5204422
156,118,157 1,859,972
163,278,955 10,507 037
[.115,881 220662
(0,968,846 {TRO495)
{350,469 (47) {154,218 185)
(396.,322,032) (152,771,918}
67,523,031 21,559,325
1,011,967 B3R 504
283,855 255317
GEN18853 23953, 146

172836

172.836 // b 326,132
[y
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{Cigrency: MUR)

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

MAL, Rs MALL Rs
28 Depreciation
Depreciation of Tangrble Assets (Refer note4) 4,370,905 4. 460,363
4,370,905 4,460,393
29 Other Expeases
Selling Expenses 107,014,788 344 675,299
Clearing and Forwarding 5,949 59 1,383,790
Travelling Expenses 268,198 2.2
Power and Fuel 954 882 G0, 531
Rent 5.065 346 63,650
Telephone, Telex & Postage 233,502 AW K13
Repairs to Machinery 99,087 1173, 108
Insurance 1RR 0490 742 466
Exchange Difference (Net) -
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses B BO0N DK
Misceltaneous Expenses 18817254 3257549
139,110,732

360,115,472
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1.

32.

Capital Management

Group's policy is to maintain a strong capital base 50 as to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business. Management monitors the return on
capital. as well as the level of dividends to equity sharcholders. The board of directors seeks to maintain
a balance between the higher retums that might be possible with higher levels of borrowing and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position. Group’s target is to achieve a return on
capital above 30%; in 2021-22 the return was 8 % and in 2020-21 the return was 65%.

Group monitors capital using a ratio of ‘adjusted net debt’ to ‘adjusted equity’. For this purpose, adjusted
net debt is defined as total liabilities, comprising interest-bearing loans and borrowings and obligations
under finance leases, less cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments. Adjusted equity
comprises all components of equity,

Group's policy is to keep the ratio below 1.00 and its adjusted net debt to equity ratio at 31 March 2022

was as follows. MUR
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Det Nil il
Less: Cash and Cash equivalents T3.507.667 T7195,100
Net Defw A (73.507.667) (77.193.100)
Equity B 630.730.734 585,240,560
Net Debit to I:'.qui.'ly ratio AR Nil Nil

Earnings Per share (EPS):

The numerator and denominator used to calculate Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share:

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
RBasic and Diluted Earnings Per Share:

Profit attributable to Equity sharcholders- lor Basic A 45,490,174 I6LI128, 164
EPS (MUR)

Add: Dilutive effect on profit (IMUR) B Mil Nil
Profit  attributable o Equity sharcholders for  C=A-B 45,490,174 361,128,164
computing Diluted EPS (MUR)

Weighted  Average Number of Eguity Shares D 613.79] 613.791
outstanding - for Basic EPS

Add: Dilwtive effect of option outstanding- Number of E Nil Nil
Equity Shares

Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares for F=DHE 613.791 613,791
Diluted EPS

Faee Value per Equity Share (MUR) 10g 10
Basic Earnings Per Share (MUR) Al T4 5HH.36
Diluted Earnings Per Shares (MUR) CIF 7411 SHA.36

Employee Benefits
As required by Ind AS 19 *Employee Benefits’, the Group offers its employees Social Security Cost and
Severance Allowance. During the year, the Group has recognised the following amounts in the account:

- MUR
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 |
Social Security Cost GO, 344 2 78K.287
Severance Allowance {T3B.RT3) 1 5001650

Total 251471
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For employees who are not covered by a pension plan, the net present value of severance allowances
payable is provided for under the Employment Rights Act. It has been assumed that the rate of future
salary increases will be equal to the discount rate.

Financial Instrument — fair values and risk management

Fair value measurements MUR
— 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Financial Instruments by category FVIPL Amortised Cost FYTPL Amaortised Cost
Financial Asseis
Investment in Mutual Funds Nil Nil 201,960,158 Nil
Trade Receivables Nil 297.315.048 Nil 55,389,040
Other Non-Current Financial Assels Nil 1,157,322 Nil 1177382
Cash and cash equivalenis Nil 73459788 Nil 77193100
Total Financial Assels Nil 371,932,158 200,960,158 133,759,462

Financial Liabilities

Mon-Current Lease Liahlhity Ml Nil Nil 2469, 066
Cvher Current Financial Lishilities Nil B3.009.460 Nil 79431483
Total Financial Liahilities Nil BS,004, 460 Nil 81,900,549 I
Fair Value Hierarchy MUR
3 March 2022 31 March 2021
Financial assets and liabilities measured Level Level
at fair value
I ] I 1 1 I
Financial assets
MNon-recurring fair value measurement
Irvestment in Mutual Funds Wil Nil Nil 201960058 wNj Nil
| Total Financial Assets Nil Nil Nil 201,960,158 Nil Nil

Level | — The hierarchy in level | includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This
includes mutual funds that have guoted price. The mutual funds are valued using the closing NAV.

Level 2 — The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (like forward
contracts) is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data
and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. [Fall significant inputs required to fair value as
instrument arc observable, the instrument is included in level 2,

Level 3 — If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument
is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities, ete. included in level 3.

A. Financial risk management
Group has exposure to following risks arising from financial instruments:
o Credit risk
o Liquidity risk
» Market risk
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Risk management framework

Group's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company's risk management framework. Management is responsible for developing and monitoring the
Company's risk management policies, under the guidance of Audit Committee.

Group’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by it, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management
policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group's
activities. Group, through its training and procedures aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive
control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

Group’s Audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Group's risk
management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in
relation to the risks faced by the Group. The audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal
audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and
procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee.

i. Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counter party will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument
or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from its
operating activities (primarily trade receivables).

Summary of the Company’s exposure to credit risk by age of the outstanding from various customers

is as follows:
= MUR

Particulars 31 March 2022 A1 March 2021
Not past due but impaired il Nil
Not past due not impaired 15,525,319 B6T.264
Past due not impaired 281,789,719 54,521,776
- 1-180 days 239,288 892 54,521,776
= 181-365 duys A2.500.8306 il
= more than 365 days Nil Nil
Past due impaired Nil Nil
= 1-180 days Wil Nil
- 181-365 days Nil Nil
- mire than 365 days il Nil

a) Trade receivables
Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Group's established policy.,
procedures and conirol relating to customer credit risk management. Trade receivables, which
are non-interest hearing, are mainly from stockists, distributors and customers. Except for, one
large client, the Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over
a number of counterparties and customers. The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales
of products and services are made to customers with an appropriate credit history.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major
clients. In addition, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups
and assessed for impairment collectively. The caleulation is based on historical data. The
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of
financial assets. The group does not hold collateral as security. The group evaluates the
concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers are located in




Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Il

e
.

b} Financial instruments
Company limits its exposure to credit risk by investing only in liquid debt securities issued by
mutual funds having a credit ranking of at least 3 and above from CRISIL or equivalent rating
agency. Company monitors changes in credit risk by tracking published extemal credit ranking.
Based on its on-going assessment of counterparty risk, the Company adjusts its exposure 1o
various counterparties,

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group may not be able to meet its present and future cash and
collateral obligations without incurring unacceptable losses. The Group's objective is to, at all times
maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The Group closely
monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system. It maintains adequate
sources of financing including bilateral loans, debt and overdraft from banks at an optimised cost.
Working capital requirements are adequately addressed by internally generated funds. Trade
receivables are kept within manageable levels.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates. interest rates
and equity prices - will affect the Group's income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. Financial instruments affected
by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits, investments, and derivative financial
instruments. Group's activities expose it 10 a variety of financial risks. including the effects of
changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates, All transactions are carried out within
the guidelines set by the risk management committee.

The sensitivity analysis have been prepared on the basis of derivatives and the proportion of financial
instruments in foreign currencies are all constant, The analysis excludes the impact of movements
in market variables on the carrying value of postemplovment benefit obligations, provisions and on
the non-financial assets and liabilities. The sensitivity of the relevant income statement item is the
effect of the assumed changes in the respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets
and financial liabilities held as of 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021,

a) Currency risk
The Group is exposed to currency risk to the extent that there is a mismatch between the
currencies in which sales. purchases and borrowings are denominated. The currencies in which
these transactions are primarily denominated are US Daollars, Euro and Mauritian Rupee.

The Group does not have any policy to hedge against foreign currency exposure. In respect of
other monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies. the Group's policy is to
ensure that its net exposure is kept to an acceptable level by buying or selling foreign currencies
at spot rates when necessary to address short-term imbalances,

The following table analyses foreign currency risk as of 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021:
MUR

Particulurs 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Bank Balances 73.507.667 T7.193.100

Trade Receivables
Other Current Assels
Net Assets / (Liabilities)

297,315,048 55.389,040

t\"\.» ./

595, vsu U 106866093
A7, \ 239,448,233
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, every percentage point depreciation /
appreciation in the exchange rate between the MUR and respective currencies has affected the
Group's incremental profit before tax as per below:

= MUR_

Year Change in currency exchange rate Effect on profit before tax
31 March 2022 +5% / (-5%) 14,865,752 / (14.865.752) |
31 March 2021 +5% 1 {-5%) TII5.6107(7.315.610) |

Note on foreign currency exposures on assets and liabilities:

During the year, the Group has not entered into Forward Exchange Contract. The year-end foreign
currency exposures that have not been mitigated by a derivative instrument or otherwise are as below:

MUR Foreign Currency i
e 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March mzaz 31 March 2021 (fu“rrrz':::'
Amount Receivable 65,875,951 52,350.774 1,308,012 1,170,060 EURO
234,439,097 93,961,429 5103173 2,302,920 USD
61,147,548 Nil 8.906,461,373 Nil vzs |

by Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates is Nil as there are no borrowings in the Group.

¢) Price risk
Group does not have any exposure to price risk, as there is no equity investments by group.

Disclosure for operating leases under Ind AS 116 - *Leases™:

The Group have taken various premises under operating lease. These are generally cancellable and
ranges from 11 months to 5 years and are renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreeable terms.
Some of these lease agreements have price escalation clauses. There are no restrictions imposed by
these lease arrangements and there are no sub leases. There are no contingent rents. Applied a single
discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics.

Right-of-use assets

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Cost
Opening Balance 6,593,744 6,593,744
Additions Nil Nil
Disposals Nil Nil
I Closing Balance 6,593,744 6,593,744
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Opening Balance 4,395,830 2,197,915
Depreciation 2197914 2197915
Impaiment loss Nil Wil
Eliminated on disposals of assels Nil il
Closing Balance 6,593,744
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Carrying amounis 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Ciross 6,593,744 6,593,744
Net Nil 2.197.914

Breakdown of lease expenses

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Short-term lease expense 5,065,346 65650
Low value lease expense Wil il
I'otal lease expense 5,065,340 63630

Cash outflow on leases

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Repayment of lease liabilities (2.469.066) (2. 189.960)
Total cash outflow on leases (2.469.066) {2, VRS 560)

Maturity analysis

r Less than 1 yvear Over 1 vears

| 31 March 2022

| Lease liabilities Wil Wil
| 31 March 2021

| Lease Tiahilitics Wil 2,469,066 |

36.  Contingent Liabilities and commitments:
There are no contingent liabilities and commitments by the Group.

37.  Related party disclosure as required by Ind AS 24 are given below:

A) Relationships:
Category | - Holding Company

Ajanta Pharma Ltd.. India {Holding Company)

Category 11 - Directors, Key Management Personnel & their Relatives:
Mr. Vinayak Muzumdar Director (APML)

Mr. Suttian Deerpaul Director (APML)

& Relatives of Key Management Personnel
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_B) Following transactions were carried out with related parties: ___ MUR
Sr. Particulars Categor 31 March 2022 31 March
No. ¥ 2021

1. Purchase of Gonods:

Ajanta Pharma Lud., India | 326,515.217 933,149,372
A Sale of Capital Goods;

Ajanta Pharma Lid., India I BE2. 190 Nil

. Key Management Compensation:
Short Term Emplovee Benefits

Vinayak Mwrumdar & Suttian Deerpaul 1 5,373.828 5373828
3 Dividend Paid fo Ajanta Pharma Ltd., India | Nil 285,318,000
C) Amount outstanding as on 31 March 2022 o MUR
Sr. No. Particulars Category 31 March 2022 31 Muarch 2021
1. Advance Receivable:
Ajanta Pharma Lid.. India | Nil 90,923,163
2. Trade Pavables;
Ajania Pharma Lid, India 1 252 694,224 Nil
3 Trade Receivables:
Ajanta Pharma Ltd, India | 582,190 Nil

38.  Contribution towards Corporate Social Responsibility

_The particulars of CSR expenditure are as follows: S _MUR

Sr. No. Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

a Construction/ acquisition of asset Nil il

b, On' purposes other than (a) above il 100, MY

. “Shortfall at the end of the year il Nil

d. Total of previous year shortiall Wil il

39. _Remuncration to Auditors: 000 __MUR_

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 |

Audit Fees 530,000 568.000

For Certification and Other Matters Nil Nil

40.  Impact of COVID-19 (Global Pandemic)

The Group continued to take in to account the possible impact of COVID-19 in preparation of financial
statements, including but not limited to its assessment of liquidity and going concern assumption,
recoverable values of its financial and non-financial assets, impact on revenue and on costs. The Group
has been able to effectively manage the operations till now with appropriate precautions, without any
significant impact of COVID-19 on the business. The Company will continue to closely monitor future
economic conditions to ensure business continuity.

41.  Previous year figures have been regrouped / re-classified wherever necessary, to confirm to current
period’s classification in order 1o comply with the requirements of the amended Schedule 111 10 the
Companies Act, 2013 effective from 01 April 2021,




Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

42.  Events after reporting period

The Dircetors has taken the decision to wind up its wholly owned subsidiary company, Ajanta Pharma
(Mauritius) International L1d based on a resolution dated 7th of December 2020. The Company has
obtained the no objection clearance from the Mauritius Revenue Authority for its removal from the
Register of the Corporate and Business Registration Department,

43.  The Group has one segment of activity namely “Pharmaceuticals”.

In terms of our report attached

For G. R. Modi & Co.
Chartered Accountants ; ﬂ!ﬁf]}i\
s

(ICAI FRN§HZ617W) V\
=y o3, (o]

il :t@;
(\‘”' __,..-‘) ~kwj

Swapnil Modi
UDIN: 22107574AHZOQXG3903

Partner

Mumbai, 28 April 2022

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited

-—_—'EW .rw-’rx.f\

Yogesh M. Agrawal
Director
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of AJANTA PHARMA PHILIPPINES INC.

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

The accounts of AJANTA PHARMA PHILIPPINES INC. are being audited under the local laws
of the country by the statutory auditor for the period 1st Jan 2021 to 31st December 2021, The
company follows the period 1st April 2021 to 31st March 2022. In order to consolidate the
accounts of AJANTA PHARMA PHILIPPINES INC. with that of the company, we have been
appointed by the management of the company to audit the reinstated accounts of AJANTA
PHARMA PHILIPPINES INC. for the peniod Ist April 2021 to 31st March 2022 under the
companies Act in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in India (Ind AS).

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of AJANTA
PHARMA PHILIPPINES INC. (“the Company™) comprising of the Standalone Balance Sheet
as at 31st March 2022, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income), the Standalone Cash Flow Statement, the Standalone Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the standalone Ind AS financial
statements™) prepared in accordance with group accounting policies followed by Ajanta Pharma
Ltd. These Standalone financial statements have been prepared solely to enable Ajanta to
prepare its consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, and
profitloss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Aet, 2013 Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ( ode of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.




Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thercon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance,
(changes m equity) and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of
the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design. implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuning the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair
view and are free from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In prepanng the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process in accordance with the group accounting policies followed by Ajanta.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our objectives are 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance. but
1s not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will alwavs detect a matenal
misstatement when 1t exists. Misstatements can anse from fraud or error and are considered
matenial 1if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books

{c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.




(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014,

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2022
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 3 1st March,
2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure A"

() With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

1. The Company has not entered into any long-term contracts including derivative contracts,
requiring provision under the applicable law or accounting standards, for matenal foreseeable
losses; and

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transterred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

Jor G.R.Modi & Co

Chariered Accountants
Firm's registfat

CA Swapnil Modi
Partner
Membership number: 107574
Mumbai

28th Apnl 2022

UDIN NO 227107574AHZR)J3842



Annexure - A to the Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of AJANTA PHARMA
PHILIPPINES INC. (“the Company™) as of 3 1st March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the vear ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all matenal respects.

Our audit mnvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the nisks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 1s sufficient and appropnate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial

reporting.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that ( 1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company. (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or tmely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a matenal effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all matenal respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31st March 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of intermal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
1ssued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Jor G.R.Modi & Co

Chartered Accounta
Firm’s regi #‘nhﬂt 112617W

CA Swapnil Modi

Partner

Membership number: 107574
Mumbai

28th Apnl 2022

UDIN NO 22107574AHZRJJ3842



Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.

Balance Sheet
s af 31 March 2022

(Currency: PHP)

Asselx

Non-current nsscts
Property, plant and equipment
Orher intanpible assets
Right to use asscts
Fronncial assets
Oither financial assets
Deferred tax assets (net)

Total nop-current assels

Current asscls
Inventorics
Financial assets
Trade recervables
Cash and cash equivalents
Crber curment assels

Todal current assets

Votal assels

Equity and Liabilitics
Equity
Equity share capital
Chher Eguity

Total Equity

Liabilities
Non current liabilitics
Financial liabilitzes
Barrowangs
Lease lability

Total non-current labilities

Current linhilities
Financial liabilities
Trade pavables
Onher Minancial labilities
Diber current lubilities

Total current liabilities

Total equity snd liabilities

Significant accounting policies
The notes referred 1o above form an imegral part of the consolidated Ninancinl statements

As per our report of even date attached

In terms of our report attached
Far (.. K. Modi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Swapnil Modi
Partner
Mumbai, 28 Apr, 2022

UDIN NO : 221075T4AHZRIII842

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Note PHP rHP
7 15432727 32839 242
7 41377 452,061
7 4277 545 550,840
B 70,393 0,393
9 | B 16,08 I, 137,854
32008121 35090434

10 393,046,074 346,775 891
11 423,202,953 376504969
2 171,162 D06 B1,596 400
13 25,196,567 7.506,279
| 014,607 595 812,383 54K
1.046,615,721 847,473,951

14 2000, 00K, D00 200, (00, [
15 480,014,248 388814308
GRO,014.248 SHE.R14 308

16 11241342 10,621,290
17 4,400,059 712,157
15,641,431 11,333,446

1£ 285 K90, 528 194,587 402
1% 1848332 571,306
] 3,221,182 2,167,319
350,960,042 247,326 227

1.046.615,721 847,473,981

[LERE AL

For and on behalfl of Board of Directors
of Ajanta Phurma Philippines Inc.

Wonouh

Rajesh M. Agrawal
Darector
Mumbai, 28 Apr, 2022



Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.

Statement of Profit and Loss Account
Jar the vear ended 31 March 2022

(Crurrency: PHP)

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Note FHP FHP
Income
Revenue from operations Il 1314232087 1,338,491 065
Oither mcome 22 (B, B69 968) 14,650 854
Total income 1.505.362.119 1.353,150,919
Expenses |
Purchase of siock-m-rade F i 944,451,375 938, 142,437
Changes in mventories of finished goods‘work-m-progress/stock-n-rads 24 (46, 270,153) (T35.077,740)
Emplovee benefits expenses 25 BE. 151,183 91400, 169
Finanee costs 26 1428299 2208 651
Deprecmtion & amortisation expense 27 9,279,595 9,901,780
Chther expensés 28 |80 488 413 203,790,255
Total expenses 1.186.528.701 1.1 10,374,552
Profit before tax 316,833,417 242.776.368
Tax expense
Current tax 71302303 4315218
Deffered mx 131175 1,340 857
Prafit for the vear 241,199,939 167,120,292
Earning Per Equity Share (Basic & Diluted) {Face Value PHP 10O/} 3 120,60 8156

Sigmificant accounting policies
e notes referred (o above form an integral part of the consolidated fmancial staements

As per our report of even date attached

In terms of our report attached
For G. K. Modi & Co. For and on behall of Board of Directors
e of Ajanta Pharma Philippines lnc.

Vowou

Swapnil Modi Rajesh M. Agrawal
Partner Director
Mumbai, 28 Apr, 2022 Mumbai, 28 Apr. 2022

UDIN NO 2 221075744 2R LI3R42




Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.

Statement of Changes in Equity
for the vear ended 31 March 2027
{Currency: FHP)

A. Equity Share Capital PHP

Changes in
Equity Share
Capital due to

Restated balance  Changes in
at the beginning  equity share  Balance us at 31
of the current  capital during March 2022

Balance as at
01 April 2021

prior period
errors reporting period  the year

Aunthorised @ 200,000,000 - Rl AREEVET AT . 200,000, 000
Issued : 200,000,000 - 200,000, (0 ’ 200,006, DM
Subscribed & Paid up: 2000 (00, (W - 2060000, 000 - 200, (00 0000

B. Other Equity

Particulars Capital Securities  General Reserve  Share Based Retained Totml Non- Total Equity
Redemption Premiom Payment Earnings Controlling
Reserve Account HReserve Interests

As at ] April 2020 . . 33,094,923 . 387,999 094 421694016 . 421694016
Profit jor the penod - - - 167.120,292 167,120,292 . 167,120,292
Oxher comprehensive incomie - - z ¥ 1 )
Total comprehensive income . - - - 167,120,292 167,120,292 - 167,120,292
I'ransfer 1o Retmned Eamings - 5 £ & . s
Dividend Paid - - - . (200,000,000 {200,000, 006 (200,000,000
At 31 March 2021 - - 13.59-1_"1'_2.} = 55? !I !EEE EEI!H[”“ - w
Profit for the period 241 1949939 241,199,939 - 241,199,935
(hber comprebiensive income . . -
Total comprehensive income - - - 241,199,939 241.199.939 B 241,199,939
Transfer to Retmned Farmings - - ¥ + - . - =
Dividend Puid - 2 Z - { 150,000,000 ) {1500, 000 (W03 ) 4 {150, 000,00
At 31 March 2022 - - 33,694,923 - 446,319,325 480,014,248 - ARD,014,248

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements

In terms of our report attached
For G. R. Modi & Co,
Chartered Accon
(ICAL FR?

For and on behall of Board of Directors of
Ajantz Pharma Philippioes Inc.

Voo

Rajesh M. Agrawal
Dhrector

Swapnil Modi
Partoer

Mumbai, 28 Apr. 2022 Mumbai. 28 Apr. 2022
UDIN NO - 221075 T4AHZRI 3842




Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.

Statement of cashflow
Jor the vear ended 31 March 2022

{Currency: PHP)
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
pHp PHP
A, Cash Mow from operating activities
Profit before tax 318833417 242.776.368
Adustment for
Depreciation and amortisation expense 9,279,595 9,901,780
Finange costs 1,428 299 2208651
Operating cash Mow before working capital changes J1ms4L3N 254,886,799
Change in working capital
Decrease / {merease) mn trade receivable (48,6497 984} A9 838 831
Decreade / (increase) in other non curent assels (678 182) 85,434
Decrease [ (increase) in other current assels {17,654, 288) 10679428
Decrease / {ingrease) in inventones (46.270,183) {135,077, 740)
Increase ( (decrease) m other current lhabaliies 12,330,689 (41,338, 163)
Increase | (decrease) in trade pavables 61,303,126 (949.773.252)
Cash generated from operations 319,838 489 50,281,336
Net income tax pand (77.633,478) (75.656,076H)
Met cash Mow generated (rom operating activities 242,205,012 [ 16,374,740
B, Cash low from investing activities
Capital expenditure on propenty, plant and equipment meluding capita (746,333) (945,573
Capial expenditure on night fo use assét {(4,772,769) -
Net cash used in investing aclivities (5.519,101) (M45.573)
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Repayment of non current borrowings 620,053 5.60935]
Repayment of lease lability (including iterest thereon) 3.687.932 (1084, 834)
Interest paid (1.428.299) (2.208.681)
Dividend paid  E50, 000,000 { 2003 D00, 0Ny
Net cash used in financing activities (147,120,314) (197.6%4,136)
Netincrease [ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 89,565,597 {Z15,004,450)
Cash and cash equivalents as al the beginning of the year £1,596,409 296,604, 859
Cash and cash equivalents as a1 the end of the vear 171,162,006 81,596,409
Figures m brackets indicates outflow
Nole :

1. The abowe Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under “Indirect Method' as set out m Accounting Standard 7 (Ind AS - T)
"Statement of Cash Flow” under Secton 133 of the Companies Act 2013
2, Cash comprises cash on hand, current accoums and deposits with hunks, Cash equivalents sre sholrt-term balances (with an ongnal
matunty of three months or less from the date of acquisition)

Significant sccounting policics

The notes referred to above form an imtegral part of the consolidsted financial statemenis

As per our report of even date altached

In terms of our report attached
For G B Modi & Co.

S

Partner

Mumbai, 28 Apr, 2022
UDIN NO : 22107574 A HZRII3842

For and on behall of Board of Directors of

Ajanta Pharma Philippines lac,

Voo

Rajesh M. Agrawal
Director
Mumbai, 28 Apr, 2022




Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.

Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2022

Corporate Information

Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc. is a limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in
Philippines and is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ajanta Pharma Lid., India. The address of its
registered office is located at Unit 710, AXA Life Bldg., 1286, Sen. Gil Puyat Ave., Makati City,
Philippines.

Company is primarily involved in the business of pharmaceutical and related activities.

The Financial Statement for the year ended 31 March 2022 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee and subsequently approved by Company’s Board of Directors at it’s meeting held on 28
April, 2022,

Basis of Preparation

The financial statement of the Company have been prepared in all material aspects in accordance
with the recognition & measurement principles laid down in Indian Accounting Standards
(hereinafter referred 1o as the Ind AS’) read with Rule 4 of the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other relevamt provisions of the Act and accounting
principles generally accepted in India.

The financial staterments have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost basis,
except otherwise stated,

Functional and Presentation Currency:
Functional currency of the Company is Philippine Peso (Php).

Rounding of Amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off 1o the nearest
lacs.

Current / Non-Current classification

The assets and liabilities in the balance sheet are presented based on current/non-current
classification,

An asset is current when it is:

e [Expected 10 be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle, or

+ Held primarily for the purpose of trading, or

* Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liahility is current when it is:

» Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle, or

» Held primarily for the purpose of trading. or

¢ Due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or




Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2022

6.1

# There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could. at the option of the counterparty, result
in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

All other liabilities are treated as non-current.

Operating Cycle
An operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation
in cash or cash equivalents.

Based on the nature of products / activities of the Group and the normal time between acquisition of
assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents. the Group has determined its operating cycle
as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

Significant Accounting Policies

Property, plant and equipment

Property. plant and equipment are initially measured at cost and are presented in the financial
statements at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization and any accumulated impairment
in value. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the property, plant and equipment at the
time that cost is incurred, if the recognition criteria are met. and excludes the costs of day-to-day
servicing.

The initial cost of property and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties,
taxes and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use. Cost also includes any related asset retirement obligation (ARO) and interest
incurred during the construction period on funds borrowed to finance the construction of the
projects. Expenditures incurred after the fixed assets have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance and overhaul costs, are normally charged to deferred development cost in the
period the cost are incurred. Major repairs are capitalized as part of property and equipment only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the items will flow to the Company
and the cost of the items can be measured reliably.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis to write off the cost of assets, to their residual
values over their estimated useful life as follows:

Particulars Useful Life
Condominium Units 20 years
Fumniture, Fixtures & Fittings 2 vears
Office Equipments | 2years
Computers 2 years
Motor Vehicles 5 years

The carrying amounts of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Fully
depreciated assets are retained in the accounts until they are no longer in use and no further
depreciation and amortization are recognized in profit or loss.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized when either it has been disposed of or
when it is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on the retirement and disposal of an item of property and
equipment (calculated as the defiETeneg between the net disposal proceeds and the carryipg m




Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.

Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2022

6.2

6.3

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost and are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment loss. These are amortized over
estimated useful life using the straight line method. If there is an indication that there has been a
significanmt change in amorization rate, useful life or residual value of an intangible asset, the
amortization is revised prospectively to reflect the new expectations.

Intangible assets are derccognized when these assets are disposed of or when no future economic
benefits are expected from these assets.

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets
Classification

Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss, on the basis of its business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flows characteristics of the financial asset.

Initial Recognition and Measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset.

Subsequent Measurement

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two broad categories:

¢ Financial assets at fair value (FVTPL / FVTOCI)

¢ Financial assets at amortised cost

When assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognised in the statement of
profit and loss (i.e. fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)). or recognised in other comprehensive
income (i.e. fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)).

Financial Assets measured at Amortised Cost (net of any write down for impairment, if any)

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost when asset is held within a business model. whose
objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows and contractual terms of the asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest. Such
financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method less impairment, if any. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement
of profit and loss.

Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (“FVTOCT)

Financial assets under this category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value, when asset is held within a business model, whose objective is 1o hold assets for both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets. Fair value movements are recognized
in the other comprehensive income.




Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2022
Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (“FVTPL™)

Financial assets under this category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value with all changes recognised in profit or loss.

Investment in Equity Instruments

Equity instruments which arc held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. All other equity
instruments are classified as FVTOCL. Fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends,
are recognised in the other comprehensive income. There is no recycling of the amounts from other
comprehensive income to profit or loss.

Investment in Debt Instruments

A debt instrument is measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCL. Any debt instrument, which does
not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.
Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition of Financial Assets

A financial asset is primarily derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired or Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset.

Impairment of Financial Assets

In accordance with Ind - AS 109, Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets that are debt instruments
and trade receivables.

Financial Liabilities

Classification

Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost or FVTPL.

Initial Recognition and Measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans, borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafs and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent Measurement

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
Ilﬁ‘ccﬁvc Interest Ralf: (EIR) method. Gains and Iusses are rewgnised in prui'll or 10:.5 when 1hc
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6.6

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender
on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derivative Financial Instrument

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts to mitigate
its foreign currency risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value
on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair
value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial
liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Inventories

Finished products including traded goods and work-in-progress are valued at lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is arrived on weighted average basis. The cost of Inventories have been
computed to include all cost of purchases, cost of conversion, appropriate share of fixed production
overheads based on normal capacity and other related cost incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition,

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

Slow and non-moving material, products nearing expiry, defective inventory are fully provided for
and valued at net realisable value.

Goods in transit are valued at actual cost incurred up to the date of balance sheet.
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise of cash on hand and cash at bank including fixed
deposithighly liquid investments with original maturity period of three months or less that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-
term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an
integral part of the group’s cash management,

Cash Flow Statements

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature. any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash
flows. The cash flow from operating. investing and financing activities of the Company are
segregated.
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Foreign Currency Transactions

Revenue Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are normally recorded at the exchange rate
prevailing on the date of the transaction.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the year-end are re-measured at the exchange
rate prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary foreign currency items are carried at cost,

Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on settlement or on restatement is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue recognition under Ind AS 115 (applicable from | April 2018)

Under Ind AS 115, the group recognized revenue when (or as) a performance obligation was
satisfied, i.e. when ‘control” of the goods underlying the particular performance obligation were
transferred to the customer.

Further, revenue from sale of goods is recognized based on a 5-Step Methodology which is as
foliows;

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation
Sale of Goods

The group applied Ind AS 115 using the modified retrospective approach.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price adjusted for discounts and rebates, which is
specified in a contract with customer. Revenue are net of estimated returns and 1axes collected from
customers,

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized at point in time when control is transferred to the
customer and it is probable that consideration will be collected. Control of goods is transferred upon
the shipment of the goods to the customer or when goods is made available to the customer.

The transaction price is documented on the sales invoice and payment is generally due as per agreed
credit terms with customer.

The consideration can be fixed or variable. Variable consideration is only recognised when it is
highly probable that a significant reversal will not occur.

Sales return is variable consideration that is recognised and recorded based on historical experience,
market conditions and provided for in the year of sale as reduction from revenue. The methodology
and assumptmns used to estimate rctums are mﬂnlmrcd and ad_]ualcd rr:gularl_'.r in Imc with trade

Inferest income
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Interest income is recognised with reference to the Effective Interest Rate method.
Dividend incame

Dividend from investment is recognised as revenue when right to receive is established.
Income from Export Benefits and Other Incentives

Export benefits available under prevalent schemes are accrued as revenue in the year in which the
goods are exported and / or services are rendered only when there reasonable assurance that the
conditions attached to them will be complied with, and the amounts will be received.

Employee Benefits

Short-term Benefits - The Company recognizes a liability net of amounts already paid and an
expense for services rendered by employees during the accounting period. Short-term benefits given
by the Company 1o its employees include salaries and wages, social security contributions, short-
term compensated absences, bonuses and other non-monetary benefits.

Post-Employment Benefits - The Company does not have a formal retirement benefit plan.
However, the Company is subject to the provision of Republic Act No. 7641 (known as the
Retirement Law). This requires that in the absence of a retirement plan of agreement providing for
retirement benefits of employees in the private sector, an employee upon reaching the age of 60
years or more, but not beyond 65 years, who has served for at least five (5) years in a private
company, may retire and shall be entitled to retirement pay. No actuarial computation was made
considering that there are no more than ten (10) employees who had served at least five vears and
the turnover of employees is high.

Compensated Absences - Compensated absences are recognized for the number of paid leave days
(including holiday entitlement) remaining at the end of the reporting period. Those are included in
the salaries and wages account and are recognized when availed of by the employees.

Retirement and Other Long-term Benefits

Retirement and other long-term benefits costs are actuarially determined using the projected unit
credit method. This method reflects services rendered by emplovees up to the date of valuation and
incorporates assumptions concerning employees’ projected salaries. The calculation of defined
benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary. When the calculation results in a
potential asset for the Company, the recognized asset is limited to the present value of economic
benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in the future
contributions to the plan. To calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given
10 any applicable minimum funding requirements.

Re-measurements of the net retirement and other long-term employee benefits liability, which
comprisc actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of
the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognized immediately in OCL The Company
determines the net interest expense to measure the net retirement benefit liability (asset) on at the
beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account
any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions
and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are
recognized in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit
that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognized immediately in profit or
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loss. The Company recognizes gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the
settlement occurs.

The net retirement and other long-term benefits liability recognized by the Company is the aggregate
of the present value of the defined benefit obligation reduced by the fair value of plan assets out of
which the obligations are to be settled directly. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is
determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using risk-free interest rates of
government bonds that have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related retirement and
other long-term benefits liability.

Share-based compensation
Company has no share-based compensation plan.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs comprise interest expense on borrowings and other bank charges. Borrowing costs
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of
the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the
horrowing costs. Transaction costs are charged 1o statement of profit and loss as financial expenses
over the term of borrowing.

L.ease

The company’s lease asset class primarily consists of leases for land and buildings. The Company
assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (1) the contract involves the use of an identified
asset (2) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through
the period of the lease and (3) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

Al the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU"™)
and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases
with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these shor-term
and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the
lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that
they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost. which comprises the initial amount of the
lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the
lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying assel. Right of use assets are evaluated for
recoverability whenever wenl:. or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrving amounts
may not be n:mw.rablc e purpm:u of |mpa|rment te*_:lmg the rcmvcrahlu amount {n‘: the
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basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other
assets. In such cases. the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to
which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease
payments. The lease payments are discounted using the generally accepted interest rate. Lease
liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the
Company changes its assessment il whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease
payments have been classified as financing cash Aows.

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. the
contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.,

Transition

Effective 1 April, 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases™ and applied the standard 1o all
lease contracts existing on 1 April, 2019 using the modified retrospective method and has taken the
cumulative adjustment to retained earnings, on the date of initial application. Consequently, the
Company recorded the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments discounted at the
generally accepted interest rate and the right of use asset at its carrying amount as if the standard had
been applied since the commencement date of the lease, but discounted at the generally accepted
interest rate at the date of initial application. Comparatives as at and for the year ended 31 March,
2019 have not been retrospectively adjusted and therefore will continue to be reported under the
accounting policies included as part of our Annual Report for year ended 31 March, 2019.

On transition, the adoption of the new standard resulted in recognition of 'Right of Use' asset of PHP
2,762,968 and a leasc liability of PHP 2,881,829, The cumulative effect of applying the standard.
amounting to PHP 1 18.861 was debited to retained eamings, net of taxes. The effect of this adoption
is insignificant on the profit before tax, profit for the period and earnings per share. Ind AS 116 will
result in an increase in cash inflows from operating activities and an increase in cash outflows from
financing activities on account of lease payments,

The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application:

a. Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic
environment with a similar end date.

b. Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less
than 12 months of lease term on the date of initial application.

Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of
initial application.

L]

d. Applied the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases.
Accordingly, Ind AS 116 is applied only to contracts that were previously identified as leases
under Ind AS 17.

The interest rate applied to lease liabilities as at | April, 2019 is 6%.
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Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity
holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period. Diluted eamings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the
equity holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for
deriving basic eamings per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that
could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential
equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity shares been actually issued at
fair value. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period,
unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each
period presented,

Income Taxes
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred income tax.

Income tax expense is recognized in net profit in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent
that it relates to items recagmmd directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in other
comprehensive income. Current income tax for current and prior periods is recognized at the amount
expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities, using the respective Country's tax rates
and tax laws that have been enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities ar¢ recognized for all temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet, if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using respective Country’s tax rates and tax
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance shect date and are expected to
apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be
recovered or settled. The effect of changes in tax rates on deferred income tax assets and liabilities is
recognized as income or expense in the period that includes the enactment or the substantive
enactment date. A deferred income tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and 1ax losses can
be utilized. The Group offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultancously.

Deferred income taxes are not provided on the undistributed eamings of subsidiaries where it is
expected that the earnings of the subsidiary will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

Dividends to Sharcholders

Annual dividend distribution to the sharcholders is recognised as a liability in the period m which
the dividends are approved by the sharcholders. Any interim dividend paid is recognis

approval by Board of Directors. Di pavable 1s recognised directly in equity. ?‘Vrﬁ.ILIp P
s

&
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6.15  Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, Contingent Asseis and Commitments

General

Provisions (legal and constructive) are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required 1o settle the abligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made.

Provisions (excluding retirement benefits and compensated absences) are not discounted 1o its
present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the
balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted 1o reflect the current
best estimates.

IT there is any expectation that some or all of the provision will be reimbursed. the reimbursement is
recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense
relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and less net of any virtually certain
reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risk specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of:

» A present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation;

» A present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimates is possible:

e A possible obligation arising from past events, unless the probability of outflow of resources is
remote.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised but disclosed in the Financial Statements. Contingent assels
are neither recognised nor disclosed in the Financial Statements.

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for
completion of assets and Non-cancellable operating lease.

Provisions, contingent liabilitics, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each balance
sheet date.

Asset Retirement Obligation

Asset retirement obligations (ARO) are provided for those operating lease arrangements where the
Company has a binding obligation at the end of the lease period to restore the leased premises in a
condition similar to inception of lease. ARO are provided at the present value of expected costs to
settle the obligation using discounted cash flows and are recognised as part of the cost of that
particular asset. The cash flows are discounted at a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific
to the decommissioning liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised in the income
statement as a finance cost. The estimated future costs of decommissioning are reviewed annually
and adjusted as appropriate. Changes in estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied are
added 1o or deducted from the cost of the asset.

b.16 Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet
date in accordance with Ind AS 113,
T
2
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Financials Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following
material items in the statement of financial position:

s Derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value received from Bank.

* Mutual Funds are measured at fair values as per Net Asset Value (NAV).

* Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) at fair values as per Actuarial Valuation Report.

Fair value is the price that would be reccived to sell an asset or settle a liability in an ordinary
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are

categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that

is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

» Level | — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

s Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

s Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable,

For assets and liabilitics that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis. the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures. the company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of
the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Hecent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing
standards. There is no such notification which would have been applicable from 1 April 2022.

Critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. However,
uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets or liabilities in future periods.
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(a)

(b)

(€)

(d)

(e)

(0

Arrangement containing lease

At the inception of an arrangement, the Company determines whether the arrangement is or
contains a lease. At the inception or on reassessment of an arrangement that contains a lease,
Company separates payments and other consideration required by the arrangement into
those for the lease and those for the other elements on the basis of their relative fair values.

The Company has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements that such contracts are in the nature of operating leases.

Multiple element contracts with vendors

The Company has entered into multiple element contracts with vendors for supply of goods
and rendering of services. The consideration paid is'may be determined independent of the
value of supplies received and services availed. Accordingly, the supplies and services are
accounted for based on their relative fair values to the overall consideration. The supplies
with finite life under the contracts (as defined in the significant accounting policies) have
been accounted under Property, Plant and Equipment and/or as Intangible assets, since the
Company has cconomic ownership in these assets. Company believes that the current
treatment represents the substance of the arrangement.

Property, Plant and equipment

Determination of the estimated useful life of tangible assets and the assessment as to which
components of the cost may be capitalized. Useful life of tangible assets is based on the life
of useful lives/rates prescribed by the GAAPs of the respective countries. Assumptions also
need to be made, when the Company assesses, whether an asset may be capitalised and
which components of the cost of the asset may be capitalised.

Intangible Assets
Internal technical or user team assess the remaining useful lives of Intangible assets.
Management believes that assigned useful lives are reasonable.

Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations

The obligation arising from the defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial
assumptions. Key actuarial assumptions include discount rate, trends in salary escalation
and vested future benefits and life expectancy. The discount rate is determined with
reference to market vields at the end of the reporting period on the government bonds. The
period 1o maturity of the underlying bonds correspond to the probable maturity of the post-
employment benefit obligations.

Recognition of deferred tax assets and income tax

Deferred tax asset is recognised for all the deductible temporary differences 1o the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilised. The management assumes that 1axable profits will be
available while recognising deferred tax assets.

Management judgment is required for the calculation of provision for income taxes and
deferred tax assets and liabilities. The Company reviews at each balance sheet date the
carrying amount of deferred tax assets, The factors used in estimates may differ from acu!al
outcome which could lead to significant adjustment to the amounts reported in the financial
stalements.

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations am:_l the
amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the wide range of international business
relationships and the long-term nature and complexity of existing contractual agreements,
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(2)

(h)

(1)

differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes
to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already
recorded. The Company establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for possible
consequences of audits by the tax authorities of the respective countries in which it operates.
The amount of such provisions is based on various factors. such as experience of previous
tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the
responsible tax authority. Such differences of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of
issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the respective country.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required 1o determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits, future tax
planning strategies and recent business performances and developments.

Recognition and measurement of other provisions

The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the
probability of an outflow of resources, and on past experience and circumstances known at
the balance sheet date. The actual outflow of resources at a future date may, therefore, vary
from the figure included in other provisions.

Contingencies

Management judgement is required for estimating the possible outflow of resources, if any,
in respect of contingencies/claim/litigations against the Company as it is not possible to
predict the outcome of pending matters with accuracy.

Allowance for uncollected accounts receivable and advances

Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their normal value as reduced by
appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Individual trade receivables are
written off when management seems them not collectible. Impairment is made on the
expected credit losses, which are the present value of the cash shortfall over the expected
life of the financial assets.

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumption about risk of default
and expected loss rates. Judgement in making these assumption and selecting the inputs to
the impairment calculation are based on past history, existing market condition as well as
forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Insurance claims
Insurance claims are recognised when the Company has reasonable certainty of recovery.

Impairment reviews

An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit (*CGU”)
exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less costs
to sell and its value in use. The value in use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow
model. In calculating the value in use, certain assumptions are required to be made in
respect of highly uncertain matters, including management's expectations of growth in
EBITDA, long term growth rates; and the selection of discount rates to reflect the risks
involved.
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| Crameney: PHIF
31 March 2022 51 March 2021
FHP PP
&  (nther Non-Curreni Financial Assels
(Unsecured, Considered Good unless otherwise gated)
Secunity Deposis 70,393 Ti393
——T0 ... N
o Deferred Tax Assers | Net)
Others 18160180 1,137 4oa
1,816,080 1137599
10 Inventeries
Sanck-in-trade 395,046,074 36,7780
393,046,074 3,775,801
1 Trade Receivables
(Unsocured, Conssdered Good unlesd otheraise stated)
Aomsdered good 423,200 053 3T, 504,005
EULW Jmﬂﬂ
12 Cash and cash equdvalents
Cash vm Hangd (o4 AT 13,853
Halance with Banks - kn current accousts ITLO9T 163 K1.5K2.354
l?ldiﬂ K1.596, 400
13 Diber Current Assets
Advances o Suppliers 2377016 i, 190,171
Adbvances to Employees 14494510 1,516, 108
15,196,567 7,506,179
14 Equity Share Capital
31 March 2022 31 March 2022 51 March 2021 31 March 20621
Sumber of Namber of
Shares I Shares Fup
Authorised 1
Equaty Shates of PHP 100 each 2 000,000 200 D00 000 2,001, 60wk 200, (01 Ot}
lssued, Subscribed & Paid up :
Equaty' Shames of PHP 108 each fully pasd up 2 00HD D 00, (HCHD O} 2040, 0040 DO AR, Dok
{a) Reconciliation of auntber of equity shares outstanding st ihe beginning and af the end of the vesr :
31 March 2022 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2621
SNumber of Sumber of
Shures rar Shares Lllls
Number of shases owtstandang as o the boganming ol the year 2000, D00 200, DN, e 2,040, D0 O, 00, Co0)
Adld - Numiber of shares allotted s boous durng the year . .
Liess: Nusnher of dhares bought hack during the year - -
Number of shares oustanding ac 2 the end of the year 20, DU A4, () 2,000, TiM, D0, Y
() Righps, prelerences and restrietions artached to shares
The company has issued only one class of ordinary shanes with vohing nghts hevne a par value of PHP 0 por share
Dhaming the yenr emidedd 31 March 20020, srnount per share of divedend recogmisod as datmbitions 10 equiry sharcholders was FHP 6230 pet squity share
{31 Maech 2019 FHIF 60,60 per equity share)
Im the event of Noquidatvon of the company, the bolders of equaty shames wall be enntled to recerve remmnmg pssets of the compumy. The distnination will
e in proportion Lo the mumbers of equity shares held by sharchalders
(¢ | Detaih of equity shareholders holding more tham 5%
Name of Sharcholder 31 March 2022 3] March 2022 3] March 2021 31 March 1021
Mumbser af Number af
Shares % Holding Shares % Nolding
Apanta Phoarian Lid | India 2 1M, | B Cogp 2,0, 000 100, 0
(d) Shares reserved for issue under splions mil sl sl il
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(Curency: PHF)

15 OTHER EQUITY
Gieneral Reserve
Balange a the beginnang of the vear
Add  Transferred from Statement of Profit & Loss

Exchange Fluctuation Reserve

Surplus in the Smiement of Profil and Loss
Talarce at the begmning of the yea
Prodii For the year
Less: Appropriations
Dhvidend Paid on Egquity Shares.
Divutend Dismbubon Tax On Proposed
<Transferred from retaaned eamings
~Tranaferred to Ceneral Rescive
Halance at ihe year end
Tutal Driher Equity

16 Noa-Current Borrowings
Vehicke Loans [Secured)
from Banks (i"HPY)

17 Lease lability
Lemse Habiliny

18 Tradde Payaliles
Trade Payables to Relsed Pany

19 Dther Carrent Financial Liahilities
Current Maturitees of long-term debt

0 Dher Current Liabilities
Onbes payabics

1l Revenue from Operafinns
Kale of Products
Stock-in-Trade

I DTHER INCOME
Exchanpe DifTerence (MNet)
Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets
Imtezesi from Cibars
Miscrllameous Income

13 Purchase of Stock-in-Trade

31 March 1022
PHP
33,604,923

33,694,923

355119586
241,150,939

140, 00 000

446,319,318
48101,014,24%

11,241,342
11,241,541

4,400, 08%

A A9

2H5.850.528
2H5,890,508

1848332
1,848,332

63.221.182
63,221,182

§.514.232.087
1,514, 232,087

{10, 260,6 1K)

36, 185
1,254,464

—{E 26,

4451375

31 March 2021
PHP

33,604,923

33,694,923

IRT D00
167,120,292

20,000,041

58,119,384
IB8.R14 308

10,631,300
10,625,290

T 157
TLLIST

154,587,402
194,587,402

371306
571,504

41167319
SL167.319

1358491065
1, 338,491,005

13,653,658
s 982
598,214

14,659,854

Q3E, 142,407
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{Currency: PHIY)
31 March 1022 31 March 2021
FlF PHF
M Changes in feventories of Fminhed Goods, Work-m-progress and Siock-im-Trade
Inveniories ai the emd of the vear :
Saoik-in-trade 193,607 e, TS A
ey} 393 46,074 345,775,891
loveniories at the beginning of the yeur :
Stock-m-tmde 146,775 8 211,698 151
) 146,775,891 20,698 151
Effect of foreign exchange rranskation
Saock-ir-trade
)
Tutal changes in Inventories of Finished Gooils, Work-in-progress and Stock-in-Trude @
Saock-m-trde (46,270 183) (135,077,740
Tatal changres in Inventories af Fintvhed Goods, Wierk-in-progress amd Srock-in-Trade () - A= (C) I-li..‘l'm.:lit iIH.M"F.‘MII
HOR151.1W2 B03 063,697
152 Empolyer Benefil Expenses
Salenies, Wages, Bones und Allowances BT BIL TS 1,293,500
Sualf Wellwre Expenses 338428 115069
M, 151,183 405 169
0 Fimance Cost
Interest expenies 1425 299 2208651
IAE‘H 1.208.651
17 Depreciation
Diepecaation of Tangihie Assets (Hefer mote 4§ 270 505 D001, TRO
9,17%.598 5,501,784
I8 Diher Expenses
Sefling Expenses A3.3TR.902 5,304,037
Clearing wni Forwardmg (R RN | Hog4I7
Travelling Expenses 14,150,058 BAGLTIO
Fower and Fueel L Bk 513,770
Remt 1071602 2149192
Telephone, Telex & Fosage 1,356, T} 1,328,720
Repairs t Bualdmg 24130 83,147
Exchange DiiTercnce {Met) .
Mincellameons. Expenscs 14,555 028 15,175,148

189,438,433 203,790,155
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29,

30.

31.

Capital Management

Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business. Management monitors the retum on
capital, as well as the level of dividends to equity sharcholders. The board of directors seeks to maintain
a balance between the higher returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowing and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position. Company s target is to achieve a return on
capital above 30%; in 2021-22 the retum was 46% and in 2020-21 the return was 41%.

Company monitors capital using a ratio of 'adjusted net debt' to ‘adjusted ecquity’. For this purpose,
adjusted net debt is defined as total liabilities, comprising interest-bearing loans and borrowings and
obligations under finance leases. less cash and cash equivalents and shor-term investments, Adjusted
equity comprises all components of equity.

Company’s policy is to keep the ratio below 1.00 and its adjusted net debt to equity ratio at 31 March

2022 was as follows. = _PHP
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Debt 13,089,674 11,192,796
Less: Cash and Cash equivalents 171,162, E1.5%6.409
Net Debt A (158.072,332) (70,403,613)
Equity B 680,014,248 SER.814.308
Net Debt to Equity ratio AlB 0,23 -0.12
Earnings Per share (EPS):
The numerator and denominator used to calculate Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share: -

| Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

I Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share:
Profit attributable to Equity sharcholders- for Basic EPS A 241,199,939 167,120,292
(PHP)
Add: Dilutive effect on profit (PHP) B Nil Nil
Profit attributable 10 Equity shareholders for computing C=A-B 241199939 167,120,262
Diluted EPS (PHM)
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares outstanding - (B] 2 (000, (HH) 200,000
for Basic EPS
Add: Dilutive effect of option outstanding- Number of E Nil Nil
Equity Sharcs
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares for Dilued  F=DH+E 2,000,000 2,000,000
EPS
Face Value per Equity Share (MHP) 100 100
Basic Earnings Per Share (PHFP) Al 12060 8156
Diluted Earnings Per Shares (PHFP) CiF 120060 B350 :

Employee Benefits

As required by Ind AS 19 *Employee Benefits’, the Company offers its employees: Short-term employee
benefits - These benefits include salaries and wages and other government contributions which are due
within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related service. The
total consideration paid in 2021-22 was PHP 88,151,183 (Previous Year PHP 91,409,169).

Retirement plan - The Company did not yet set up a retirement plan since it does not have more than
ten (10) employees who had served at least five years. Retirement expenses are recognized upon actual
availing of qualified employees which will be determined by the Company based on the actual number
of years of service in compliance with RA No. 7641. No retirement costs were recognized.
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32.

Financial Instrument — fair values and risk management

~ Fair value measurements ) B o ~_pPHP
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Financial Instruments by category FYTPL Amortised Cost FVTPL Amortised Cost
Financial Assets I
Trade Receivables Ml 425,202,953 Nil 376,504,909 |
Other Non-Current Financial Assets Nil 0393 Mil 70,393
Cash and cash equivalents il 171,162,006 Mil 81,596,400
Total Financial Assets Nil 596,435,351 Nil 458,171,770

Financial Liabilities

Bormowings il 11,241,342 Nil 10,621,290
Mon-Current Lease Liability Ml 4.400,08% il 712,157
Oither Current Financial Liabilities Nil 65069514 Nil 51,738,826
Trade Payables Wil 285 890,528 Nil 194,587 402
Tutal Financial Lishilities Nil 366,601,473 il 258,659,673
Level | - The hierarchy in level | includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This

includes mutual funds that have quoted price. The mutual funds are valued using the closing NAV.

Level 2 — The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (like forward
contracts) is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data
and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value as
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3 — If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument
is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities, ete. included in level 3,

A. Financial risk management
Company has exposure to following risks arising from financial instruments:
» Credit risk
» Liguidity risk
s Market risk

Risk management framework

Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company’s risk management framework. Management is responsible for developing and monitoring the
Company's risk management policies, under the guidance of Audit Committee.

Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by it, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management
policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s
activities. Company, through its training and procedures aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive
control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

Company’s Audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk
management pullctcﬂ and pmccdurcs and rcwcw'; the adequaf.,y nf lh-: rl*ik management l'ramewurh in

internal audit. Intcmdt audit undg.rtake.s hmh regu!ar and ad hoc reviews of risk mrrﬁ? ement conyrals

£S5\ m
and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee. ﬂl ?1,{'-1\.'\??5'“ II.-'T’}
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i

Credit risk

Company's credit risk is minimal. The trade receivables arise mainly from transactions with its
approved customers. The maximum exposure to credit on these transactions is equal to the carrying
amount of these financial instruments. Customers are subject to stringent financial. credit and legal
verification process. In addition, trade receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis to
ensure timely collections. Accordingly. the Company’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Summary of the Company's exposure to credit risk by age of the outstanding from various customers
is as follows: ~PHP
31 March 2021

Particulars 31 March 2022

Nol past due but impaired Wil Nil
Mot past due not impaired 3B1.612.567 373,387,784
Past due not impaired 43,590,386 3,117,185
= |- 180 days 43.590.386 3117185

| - more than 365 days Nil Nil
Past due impuired Mil Nil
= 1-180 days Nil Wil
= 181365 days Nil wil
| - more than 363 days Nil Nil |

kb

iii.

With respect to eredit risk arising from other financial assets of the Company, which comprise cash
in banks and receivables (except for advances 1o suppliers), the Company’s exposure to credit risk
arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of
these instruments. The Company limits its exposure to credit risks by depositing its cash only with
financial institutions duly evaluated and approved by the Board of Directors. The Company’s
receivables is minimal since no default pavments were made by the counterparties. An impairment
analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients,

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and
collateral obligations without incurring unacceptable losses. The Company’s objective 1s to, at all
times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The
Company closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system.,
Presently the Company has existing long-term loans that fund capital expenditures, Working capital
requirements are adequately addressed by internally generated funds. Trade receivables are kept
within manageable levels.

Markel risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices — such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates
and equity prices - will affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments, The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the retumn. Financial instruments affected
by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits, investments, and derivative financial
instruments. Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including the effects of
changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. All transactions are carried out within
the guidelines set by the risk management committee.

The sensitivity analysis has been prepared on the basis of derivatives and the proportion of financial
instruments in foreign currencies are all constant. The analysis excludes the impact of movements
in market variables on the carrying value of postemployment benefit obligations, provisions and on
the non-financial assets and liabilities. The sensitivity of the relevant income statement item is the
effect of the assumed changes in the respective market risks. This is based on the
and financial liabilities held as of 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021.
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a) Currency risk
The Company’s foreign exchange risk results primarily from movements of the Philippine peso
against the US dollar with respect to US dollar denominated financial assets and liabilities.

The Company's transactional currency exposures arise from its inventories which is 100%
purchases from Holding Company in US dollar. In addition, 58% as at 31 March 2022 and 58%
as at 31 March 2021 of the Company’s debt are denominated in US dollar. The Company
periodically reviews the trend of the foreign exchange rates and, as a practical move, increases
its US dollar denominated time deposits in times when the Philippine peso is depreciating or
decreases its US dollar denominated time deposits in times when the Philippine peso is
appreciating.

The following table analvses foreign currency risk as of 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021:

PHP
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 |
Financial Assets
lrade Payables (285,890 528) (194.587.402)
Borrowings & Other Financial Liabilities (7.392.011) 16,491,822) ;
Net Assets / (Liabilities) (293,482,538) (200.079,223)

For the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, every percentage point depreciation /
appreciation in the exchange rate between the PHP and respective currencies has affected the

Company's incremental profit before 1ax as per below: ~__par_

Year Change in currency exchange rate Effect on profit before tax |

31 March 2022 +5% /(5% 14,674,127/ (14.674.127) |
31 March 2021 +5% / (-5%) 1053.961 /(10,053,961) |

33.  Note on foreign currency exposures on assets and liabilities:

During the vear, the Company has not entered into Forward Exchange Contract. The year-end foreign
currency exposures that have not been mitigated by a derivative instrument or otherwise are as below:

PHP Foreign Currency P
Particulars 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March c“rmﬁc
2022 2021 2022 2021 y

Amount Payable 293,482,538 201,079,223 4,239,170 4,212,143 UsD |

b) Interest rate risk
The Company’s exposure to changes in interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-
term debt obligations. Fixed rate financial instruments are subject to fair value interest rate risk.
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity analysis to a reasonably possible change in
interest rates, with all other variable held constant, of the Company’s profit before income tax.
The estimates are based on the outstanding interest-bearing liabilities of the Company with

_floating interest rate as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021. PHP
Year Change in interest rate Effect on profit before tax T
31 March 2022 F1% / (-1%) 130,897 / (130,897)

31 March 2021 +1% / (-1%) 111,928 /(111.928) |
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34.  Disclosure for operating leases under Ind AS 116 - “Leases™:

The Group have taken various premises under operating Jease. These are generally cancellable and
ranges from 11 months to 5 years and are renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreeable terms.
Some of these lease agreements have price escalation clauses. There are no restrictions imposed by
these lease arrangements and there are no sub leases. There are no contingent rents. Applied a single
discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics.

Right-of-use assets

31 March 2022 3 March 2021
Caost
Opening Balance 2. 762968 2.762.998
Additions 4772769 Nil
Disposals Nil Nil
Closing Balance 7.535,737 2,762,998
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Opening Balance 2,172,128 | 086064
Depreciation 1,086,064 1086064
Impairment loss il Nil
Eliminated on disposals of assets Nil Nil
Closing Balance 3.258.192 2,172,128
Carrying amounis 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Ciross 758,787 2.762.968
Nel 4,277,545 590,840
Breakdown of lease expenses
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 |
Short-term lease expense 2071602 2,149,192
Low value lease expense Nil il
Total lease expense 2,071,602 2,149,192
Cash outflow on leases
N 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
{Repayment) / Addition of lease liabilities 3,687.932 (1LOB4.836)
Total cash outflow on leases 3687932 {1,084.836)
Maturity analysis
Less than | year Over | years
3 Mareh 2022
Lease liabilities Nil 4,400,089
31 March 2021
Lease liabilities T12,157

M. ND.

107574
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35.  Contingent Liabilities and commitments:

There are no contingent liabilities and commitments by the Company.
36.  Related party disclosure as required by Ind AS 24 are given below:

A) Relationships:
Category 1 — Holding Company & Fellow Subsidiary
Ajanta Pharma Ltd., India (Holding Company)

Category 11 - Dircetors, Key Management Personnel & their Relatives:
Sam Gioskos Director (APPD)
& Relatives of Key Management Personnel

B) Following transactions were carried out with related parties: PHP
Sr. No. Particulars Category 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

l. Purchase of Goods:
Ajanta Pharma Ltd., India | 944,451.375 938142437

2. Key Management Compensation:
Short Term Employee Benefits

Sam Gioskos I 6,018,320 5,373,500
3 Dividend Paid to Ajanta Pharma | 150,000,000 200,000,000
Ltd., India
_€) Amount outstanding as on 31 March 2021 PHP
| Sr. No. Particulars Category 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
1. Trade Payable :
Ajanta Pharma Ltd., India __] 2%‘389{15%3 _l‘t’ilfl_:iﬂ:.l",dﬂl
37.  Remuneration to Auditors: B S PHP
| Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

| Audit Fees 275,000 280,000 |

38.  lmpact of COVID-19 (Global Pandemic)

The Company continued to take into account the possible impact of COVID-19 in preparation of
financial statements, including but not limited to its assessment of liquidity and going concern
assumption, recoverable values of its financial and non-financial assets. impact on revenue and on costs.
The Company has been able to effectively manage the operations till now with appropriate precautions,
without any significant impact of COVID-19 on the business. The Company will continue to closely
monitor future economic conditions to ensure business continuity.
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39, Previous year figures have been regrouped / re-classified wherever necessary, to confirm 1o current
period’s classification in order 1o comply with the requirements of the amended Schedule 111 to the

Companies Act, 2013 effective from 01 April 2021,

40. The Company has one segment of activity namely “Pharmaceuticals”™.

In terms of our report attached

For G. R. Modi & Co. For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Ajanta Pharma Philippines Ine,

(ICAIFRN: 112617W)

\

@‘: Dudol
Swapnil Modi v ) Rajesh M. Agrawal
Partner ~ Director

Mumbai, 28 Apr 2022

UDIN NO: 221075T4AHZRDI3842
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

The accounts of AJANTA PHARMA NIGERIA LTD. are being audited under the local laws of
the country by the statutory auditor for the period 1st Jan 2021 to 31st December 2021. The
company follows the period 1st April 2021 to 31st March 2022. In order to consolidate the
accounts of AJANTA PHARMA NIGERIA LTD. With that of the company, we have been
appointed by the management of the company to audit the reinstated accounts of AJANTA
PHARMA NIGERIA LTD. for the period 1st April 2021 to 31st March 2022 under the
companies Act in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in India (Ind AS).

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of AJANTA
PHARMA NIGERIA LTD. (“the Company™) comprising of the Standalone Balance Sheet as at
31st March 2022, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Standalone Cash Flow Statement, for the year then ended, and a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafier referred to as “the
standalone Ind AS financial statements™) prepared in accordance with group accounting policies
followed by Ajanta Pharma Ltd These Standalone financial statements have been prepared
solely to enable Ajanta Pharma Ltd. to prepare its financial statements.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, and
profit/loss, and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, QOur responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We behieve that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropnate to provide a basis for our opinion.

M.NO
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors 1s responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process in accordance with the group accounting policies followed by Ajanta.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can anise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.




(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as 1t appears from our examination of those books

(c) The Balance Sheet. the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting

Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies ( Accounts)
Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 3 1st March, 2022
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March,
2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure A"

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

1. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

1. The Company has not entered into any long-term contracts including derivative contracts,

requiring provision under the applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable
losses; and

ti. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

Jor G.R.Modi & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration-nmumber: 112617W

M. NO.

CA Swapnil Modi 107574
Partner )
Membership number: 107574
Mumbai

Date : 28th April 2022

UDIN No 22107574AHZRSM 1904



Annexure - A to the Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of AJANTA PHARMA
NIGERIA LTD.(“the Company™) as of 31st March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the vear ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a matenal effect on the financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the nisk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31st March 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
1ssued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Jfor G.R.Modi & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s regi i umber: 112617

CA Swapnil Modi

Partner

Membership number: 107574
Mumbai

Date : 28th Apnl 2022

UDIN No 22107574AHZRSM 1904



Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.

Bdlance Sheet
ax at 31 March 2022

(Currenecy: NGN)

31 Muarch 2022 31 March 2021

Mote NN NN
Assets
Non-current assels
Property, plant and equipment 7 2602778 5,102,778
Right 10 use assets T 2,743,625 1,989,404
Deferred tax assets (net) 5 - 1067, 968
Total non-current asscis 5,346,403 K. 160,150
Current assets
Financial assets
Investments
Cash and cash equivalents 9 5255916 0.845,263
nther current asscts 10 2 400,000 2,250,000
Total current assets 7.655.916 12,095,263
Total assets 13,002,319 20,255,413
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 11 ), (W0, 000 60,000,000
Uther Equity 12 (74.997.532) (63,173.955)
Total equity (14.997.532) {3.173.955)
Liahilities
Non current luhilities
Lease linhility 13 2.932.101 2.506.617
Current liabilities
Onther current linbilities 14 25.067.750 20,922.750
Total current labilities 25,067,750 20,922,750
Total Equity and Liahilities 13,002,319 20,255,412
Significant accounting policies - (0.45)

T'he notes referred o above form an integral pant of the consolidated financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

In terms of our report attached
For G. R, Modi & Co. For and on behall of Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants uf Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Lid.
(ICAT FRN D 11261TW)

Swapnil Modi Gaurang Shah
Partner Directofg,
Mumbai, 28 Apr, 2022 Mumbai, 28 Apr, 2022

VDN NO. : 22T075T4AHZRSM 1904




Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.

Statement of Profit and Loss Account
for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Clurrency: NGN)

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Note NN NN
Income
Revenue from operations 15 - 3487672
Other income - &
Total income - 5487672
Expenses
Purchase of stock-in-trade Ity - {8.204.677)
Changes in inventories of finished goods/work-in-progress/stock-in-trade 17 - £ 147 406
Emplovee benefits expenses I8 1.823.746 422,788
Finance costs 19 699, 464 h18.002
Depreciation & amortisation expense 20 4,521,799 10.968.535.27
Other expenses 21 2.710.600 22,212,593
Total expenses 10,755,609 30,164,647
Frofit before tax (10.755,609) (24,676.975)
Tax expense
Current tax L067.968 6.063.296
DefTered tax - -
Profit for the year (11,823,577) (30,740.271)
Earning Per Equity Share (Basic & Diluted) (Face Value NN 1/~) (In Rs.) 23 (0.20) (0.51)

Significant accounting policies
The notes referred 1o above form an integral part of the consolidated financial statenwents

A3 per our report of even date attached

In terms of our report attached
For G. R. Modi & Co. For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants of Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Lid.

Swapnil Modi Gaurang Shah
Partner Directo
Mumbai, 28 Apr, 2021 Mumbai. 28 Apr, 202

UDIN NGO, : 221075T4AHZRSM 1904




Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.

Statement of Changes in Equity
for the vear ended 31 March 2022

(Currency: NGN)

A. Equity Share Capital MOGN
Balance as at  Changes in - Chunges in Changes in Balance as at
01 April 2021 Equity equity share  equity share 31 March

Share capital during capital during 2022

Capital due  the vear the vear

to prior

period

errors
Authorised : B0, D00, 000 - 0, TN, DM - 0, D0, 000
Issued : 60, (0, D00 03 CHCH O - a0 000 000
Sulseribed & Paid up: 0. 000,000 i 60,000,000 e 60,000,000
B. (Mher Equity

Particulars Capital Securitics Gencral Share Based Retnined Total Muon- Total Equity
Hedemplion Premium Reserve Payment Earnings Controlling
Reserve Account Heserve Interests

As at | April 2020 - - (9.676,976) - (22,756, T09) {32,433.684) - (32,433,684)
Prafit for the period X 1 : (30,740,271)  (30,740,271) {30,740,271)
Other comprehensive income = - -
Total comprehensive income - - - - (30,740,271) (30,740,271) (30,740,271)
Transter to Retaned Eamings = £ 3 = -
Dividend Paid . . % = -
At 31 March 2021 ~ (9.676,976) - S3A96080)  (63,173955) -  (63,173,955)
Profit for the period (11,82357T) (11,823,577) T (11,823,577
Other comprehensive income = i 3 x .
Total comprehensive income - - - (I.B23.57T) (11,823,577 - (11,823.57T)
Transfer to Retained Earmings . - - - -
Dividend Pad - e . s . = *
At 31 March 2022 - - (9,676,976) - (65320,387)  (74,997.532) - {74,997,532)

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements

In terms of our report attached
For G, R. Modi & Co.

Chartered Accountanis
{(ICAIF

Mumbai, 28 Apr, 2022
VDN NO - 221075T4AHZREM 1904

For and on behall of Board of Directors of
Ajanta Pha vigeria Lid.

Craurang Shah

Director



Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.

Statement of cashflow
Jor the yvear ended 31 March 2022

(Currency: NGN)

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
AN NN
A, Cash Mlow from operating activities
Profit before tax {10,755,609) (24.676.975)
Adjustment for
Depreciation & amortisation expense 4.521.799 10,968,535
Interest expense 699 4064 618,002
Unrealised foreign exchange difference - -
Operating profit before working capital changes (5,534,.347) (13,090,438)
Changes in working capital
Decrease / (increase) in trade receivable - =
Decrease / (inerease) in other current assels {1 50,0001 200,000
Decrease  (increase) in invenlories - 4,147 406
Increase / (decrease) in other current labilities 4.145.000 10,719,354
Increase [ (decreasc) in trade pavables - (9.836,086)
Cash generated from operations (471,379) (8,948.332)
Net income tax paid {1,067 968) (6,(63,296)
Net cash flow generated from operating activities (1,539.347) (15,011.628)
B.  Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets-including imangible asscts & cwip - -
Capital expenditure on right 1o use asset (2.776.020) =
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets - 24.0602,431
Net cash used in investing activitics (2,776,020) 24,602,431
C. Cash Mlow from financing activities
Interest paid (699.464) (618,002)
Repavment of lease liability {including interest thereon) 425,484 12.381,998)
Net cash used in financing activities (273,980) (3.000,000)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (4,589,346) 6,590,803
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the vear G 845 262 3.254 458
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year 5,255.915 9,845,262

Figures in brackets indicates outflow.
Note :
1. The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under "Indirect Method' as set out in Accounting Standard 7 (Ind AS - T)
"Statement of Cash Flow" under Section 133 of the Companics Act 2013,
2. Cash comprises cash on hand, current accounts and deposits with banks, Cash eguivalents are sholri-term balances (with an
original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition),

Significant accounting policies
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the consolidated flnancial statements
As per our report of even date attached

In terms of our report attached
For G. R. Modi & Co. For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Ajanta PharmaNigeria Lid.

Swapnil Modi Gaurang Shah
Partner Director -
Mumbai, 28 Apr, 2022 Mumbai, 28 Apr, 2022

UDIN NOL 2 221075TAAHZRSM 1904




Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2022

Corporate Information

Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd. is a limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in Nigeria and
is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ajanta Pharma Ltd., India. The address of its registered office is
located at Block 6, House 6b, Howson Wright Estate, Oregun Road, Ojota, Lagos, Nigeria.

The Company is primarily involved in the business of pharmaceutical and related activities.

The Financial Statement for the year ended 31 March 2022 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee and subsequently approved by Company’s Board of Directors at it’s meeting held on 28
April, 2022,

Basis of preparation

The Financial Statement of the Company have been prepared in all material aspects in accordance
with the recognition & measurement principles laid down in Indian Accounting Standards
(hereinafter referred to as the ‘Ind AS’) read with Rule 4 of the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act and accounting
principles generally accepted in India.

The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost basis,
except otherwise stated.

Functional and Presentation Currency:

Functional currency of the Company is Nigerian Niara (NGN).

Rounding of Amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off 1o the nearest
Crorgs.

Current / non-current classification:

The assets and liabilities in the balance sheet are presented based on current/non-current
classification.

An asset is current when it is:

* Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle, or

« Held primarily for the purpose of trading, or

» Expected 1o be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

» (Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period,
All other assets are classified as Non-Current.

A liability is current when it is:

* [Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle, or

o Held primarily for the purpose of trading, or

e Due to be settled within twelve months afler the reporting period, or




Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2022

6.1

6.2

o There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result
in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

All other liabilities are treated as Non-Current.

Operating Cycle
An operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation
in cash or cash equivalents.

Based on the nature of products / activities of the company and the normal time between acquisition
of assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the company has determined its operating
cyele as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-
current.

Significant Accounting Policies
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are included
in the assets carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write off the cost ol assets, to their residual
values over their estimated useful life as follows:

Particulars Uscful Life |
! Motor Vehicles 4 vears |

The asset's residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at cach end of
reporting period. Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount, it is written down immediately to its recoverable amount. Gains and losses on disposals of
property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
included in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets
Classification
Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured al amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss, on the basis of its business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flows characteristics of the financial asset.
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial a

recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction t are attributable to the g
of the financial asset.




Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2022

Subsequent measurement

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two broad categories:

o Financial assets at fair value (FVTPL / FNTOCH

» Financial assets at amortised cost

When assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognised in the statement of
profit and loss (i.e. fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)), or recognised in other comprehensive
income (i.c. fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)).

Financial Assets measured at amortised cost (net of any write down for impairment, if any)

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost when asset is held within a business model, whose
objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows and contractual terms of the asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest. Such
financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method less impairment, if any. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement
of profit and loss.

Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (“FVTOCI™)

Financial assets under this category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value, when asset is held within a business model, whose objective is to hold assets for both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets. Fair value movements are recognized
in the other comprehensive income.

Financial Asscts measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (“FVTPL")

Financial assets under this category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value with all changes recognised in profit or loss,

Investment in Equity Instruments

Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. All other equity
instruments are classified as FVTOCI. Fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends.
are recognised in the other comprehensive income. There is no recycling of the amounts from other
comprehensive income to profit or loss.

Investment in Debt Instruments
A debt instrument is measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI,. Any debt instrument, which does
not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition of Financial Assets

A financial asset is primarily derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired or Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset.

Impairment of Financial Asscts

In accordance with Ind - AS 109, Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets that are debt instruments
and trade receivables.




Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2022

6.3

Financial Liabilitics

Classification

Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost or FVTPL.
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans, borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafis and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent Measurement

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as linance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derccognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender
on substantially difTerent terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derivative Financial Instrument

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts to mitigate
its foreign currency risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value
on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair
value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial
liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Inventories

Finished products including traded goods are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value, Cost is
arrived on weighted average basis. The cost of Inventories have been computed 1o include all cost of
purchases, cost of conversion, appropriate share of fixed production overheads based on normal
capacity and other related cost incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business. less the
estimated costs of completion and selling expenses necessary to make the sale.

Slow and non-moving material, products nearing expi ective inventory are fully
and valued at net realisable value, ;




Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2022

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

Goods and materials in transit are valued at actual cost incurred up to the date of balance sheet.
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalems comprise of cash on hand and cash at bank including fixed
deposit/highly liquid investments with original maturity period of three months or less that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject 1o an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-
term deposits, as defined above. net of outstanding bank overdrafis as they are considered an
integral part of the company’s cash management.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash
flows. The cash flow from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are
segregated.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Revenue Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are normally recorded at the exchange rate
prevailing on the date of the transaction,

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the year-end are re-measured at the exchange
rate prevailing on the balance sheet date, Non-monetary foreign currency items are carried at cost.

Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on settlement or on restatement is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue recognition under Ind AS 115 (applicable from 1 April 2018)

Under Ind AS 115, the group recognized revenue when (or as) a performance obligation was
satisfied, i.c. when “control” of the goods underlying the particular performance obligation were
transferred to the customer.

Further, revenue from sale of goods is recognized based on a 5-Step Methodology which is as
follows:

Step | Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation

Sale of Goods




Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2022

6.8

6.9

The group applied Ind AS |15 using the modified retrospective approach.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price adjusted for discounts and rebates, which is
specified in a contract with customer. Revenue are net of estimated returns and taxes collected from
Cuslomers.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized at point in time when control is transferred to the
customer and it is probable that consideration will be collected. Control of goods is transferred upon
the shipment of the goods to the customer or when goods is made available to the customer.

The transaction price is documented on the sales invoice and payment is generally due as per agreed
credit terms with customer.

The consideration can be fixed or variable. Variable consideration is only recognised when it is
highly probable that a significant reversal will not occur.

Sales return is variable consideration that is recognised and recorded based on historical experience,
market conditions and provided for in the year of sale as reduction from revenue. The methodology
and assumptions used to estimate returns are monitored and adjusted regularly in line with trade
practices, historical trends, past experience and projected market conditions.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised with reference to the Effective Interest Rate method.
Dividend income

Dividend from investment is recognised as revenue when right to receive is established.
Ineame from Export Benefits and Other Incentives

Export benefits available under prevalent schemes are accrued as revenue in the year in which the
goods are exported and / or services are rendered only when there reasonable assurance that the
conditions attached to them will be complied with. and the amounts will be received.

Employee Benefits

Short-term Benefits - The Company recognizes a liability net of amounts already paid and an
expense for services rendered by employees during the accounting period. Short-term benefits given
by the Company 1o its employees include salaries and wages and other non-monetary benefits.

Post-Employment Benefits — No provision has been made in respect of employee retirement
benefits as employees are not eligible for such benefits. Besides the company does not have any
pension scheme or any contracted agreement binding itself to the employees.

Share-based compensation
Company has no share based compensation plan.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs comprise of other bank charges. Borrowing costs directly atributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset. All othe
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of injef
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6.10

Lease

The company's lease asset class primarily consists of leases for land and buildings. The Company
assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (1) the contract involves the use of an identified
asset (2) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through
the period of the lease and (3) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease. the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU")
and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases
with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term
and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options 1o extend or terminate the lease before the end of the
lease term, ROL assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that
they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the
lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the
lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for
recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the
higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual assel
basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other
assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to
which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease
payments. The lease payments are discounted using the generally accepted interest rate. Lease
liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the
Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a tenmination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease
payments have been classified as financing cash fows.

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. the
confract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

Transition

Effective | April, 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases™ and applied the standard to all
lease contracts existing on 1 April, 2019 using the modified retrospective method and has taken the
cumulative adjustment to retained earnings, on the date of initial application. Consequently, the
Company recorded the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments discounted at the
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generally accepted interest rate and the right of use asset at its carrying amount as if the standard had
been applied since the commencement date of the lease, but discounted at the generally accepled
interest rate at the date of initial application, Comparatives as at and for the vear ended 31 March,
2019 have not been retrospectively adjusted and therefore will continue to be reported under the
accounting policies included as part of our Annual Report for year ended 31 March, 2019,

On transition, the adoption of the new standard resulted in recognition of 'Right of Use' asset of
NGN 6,763.975 and a lease liability of NGN 7,270,613, The cumulative effect of applying the
standard, amounting to NGN 506,639 was debited to retained earnings, net of taxes, The effect of
this adoption is insignificant on the profit before tax, profit for the period and earnings per share. Ind
AS 116 will result in an increase in cash inflows from operating activities and an increase in cash
outflows from financing activities on account of lease payments.

The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application:

a. Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic
environment with a similar end date.

b. Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less
than 12 months of lease term on the date of initial application.

¢. Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of
initial application.

d. Applied the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases.
Accordingly. Ind AS 116 is applied only to contracts that were previously identified as leases
under Ind AS 17.

The interest rate applied to lease liabilities as at 1 April, 2019 is 9%.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity
holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period. Diluted eamings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the
equity holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for
deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that
could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential
equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity shares been actually issued at
fair value. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period,
unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each
period presented.

Income Taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred income tax.

Income tax expense is recognized in net profit in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent
that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in other
comprehensive income. Current income tax for current and prior periods is recognized at the amount
expected 10 be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities, using the respective Country's tax rates
and tax laws that have been enacted by the halance sheet date.
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Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet, if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis. to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using respective Country’s tax rates and tax
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected 10
apply to taxable income in the vears in which those temporary differences are expected to be
recovered or settled. The effect of changes in tax rates on deferred income tax assets and liabilities is
recognized as income or expense in the period that includes the enactment or the substantive
enactment date. A deferred income tax asset is recognized 1o the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax losses can
be utilized. The Group offsets current tax assets and current 1ax liabilities, where it has a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Dividends to Sharcholders

Annual dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised as a liability in the period in which
the dividends are approved by the sharcholders. Any interim dividend paid is recognised on
approval by Board of Directors. Dividend payable is recognised directly in equity.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, Contingent Assets and Commitments

General

Provisions (legal and constructive) are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal
or constructive) as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made.

Provisions (excluding retirement benefits and compensated absences) are not discounted to its
present value and are determined based on best estimate required 1o settle the obligation at the
balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimates.

If there is any expectation that some or all of the provision will be reimbursed. the reimbursement is
recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense
relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any virtually certain
reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risk specific to the liability, When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of:

* A present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation;

* A present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimates is possible;

» A possible obligation arising from past events, unless the probability of outflow of resources is
remote.
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Contingent liabilities are not recognised but disclosed in the Financial Statements. Contingent assets
arc neither recognised nor disclosed in the Financial Statements.

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for
completion of assets and Non-cancellable operating lease.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each balance
sheet date,

Asset Retirement Obligation

Asset retirement obligations (ARO) are provided for those operating lease arrangements where the
Company has a binding obligation at the end of the lease period to restore the leased premises in a
condition similar 10 inception of lease. ARO are provided at the present value of expected costs to
settle the obligation using discounted cash flows and are recognised as part of the cost of that
particular asset. The cash flows are discounted at a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific
to the decommissioning liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised in the income
statement as a finance cost. The estimated future costs of decommissioning are reviewed annually
and adjusted as appropriate. Changes in estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied are
added to or deducted from the cost of the asset.

Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet
date in accordance with Ind AS 113.

Financials Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following
material items in the statement of financial position:

e Derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value received from Bank.

»  Mutual Funds are measured at fair values as per Net Asset Value (NAV).

* Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) at fair values as per Actuarial Valuation Report.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or settle a liability in an ordinary
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability 1o
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are

categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that

is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

o Level | — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

e Level 2 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that js—siznificant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirgetly observable.
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* Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of
the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifics new standard or amendments 1o the existing
standards. There is no such notification which would have been applicable from 1 April 2022.

Critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilitics, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. However,
uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrving amount of the assets or liabilities in future periods.

(a) Arrangement containing lease
At the inception of an arrangement, the Company determines whether the arrangement is or
contains a lease. At the inception or on reassessment of an arrangement that contains a lease,
Company scparates payments and other consideration required by the arrangement into
those for the lease and those for the other elements on the basis of their relative fair values.

The Company has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements that such contracts are in the nature of operating leases.

(b) Multiple element contracts with vendors

The Company has entered into multiple element contracts with vendors for supply of goods
and rendering of services. The consideration paid is‘'may be determined independent of the
value of supplies received and services availed. Accordingly, the supplies and services are
accounted for based on their relative fair values to the overall consideration. The supplies
with finite life under the contracts (as defined in the significant accounting policies) have
been accounted under Property, Plant and Equipment andfor as Intangible assets, since the
Company has economic ownership in these assets. Company believes that the current
treatment represents the substance of the arrangement.

(c) Property, Plant and equipment
Determination of the estimated useful life of tangible assets and the assessment as to which
components of the cost may be capitalized. Useful life of tangible assets is based on the life
of useful lives/rates prescribed by the GAAPs of the respective countries. Assumptions also
need to be made, when the Company assesses, whether an asset may be capitalised and
which components of the cost of the asset may be capitalised.
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(d)

(e)

(H

(2)

(h)

Intangible Assets

Internal technical or user team assess the remaining useful lives of Intangible assets.
Management believes that assigned useful lives are reasonable.

Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations

The obligation arising from the defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial
assumptions. Key actuarial assumptions include discount rate, trends in salary escalation
and vested future benefits and life expectancy. The discount rate is determined with
reference to market yiclds at the end of the reporting period on the government bonds. The
period to maturity of the underlying bonds correspond to the probable maturity of the post-
employment benefit obligations,

Recognition of deferred tax assets and income tax

Deferred tax asset is recognised for all the deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilised. The management assumes that taxable profits will be
available while recognising deferred tax assets.

Management judgment is required for the calculation of provision for income taxes and
deferred tax assets and liabilities. The Company reviews at each balance sheet date the
carrying amount of deferred tax assets. The factors used in estimates may differ from actual
outcome which could lead to significant adjustment to the amounts reported in the financial
statements.

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations and the
amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the wide range of intemational business
relationships and the long-term nature and complexity of existing contractual agreements,
differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes
to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already
recorded. The Company establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for possible
consequences of audits by the tax authorities of the respective countries in which it operates.
The amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous
tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the
responsible tax authority. Such differences of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of
issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the respective country.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised. based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits, future tax
planning strategies and recent business performances and developments.

Recognition and measurement of other provisions

The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the
probability of an outflow of resources, and on past experience and circumstances known at
the balance sheet date. The actual outflow of resources at a future date may, therefore, vary
from the figure included in other provisions.

Contingencies
Management judgement is required for estimating the possible outflow of resources, if any,
in respect of contingencies/claim/litigations against the Cﬂmpanw not possible to
predict the outcome of pﬁnd TRy ith accuracy.
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(i)

(i)

(k)

Allowance for uncollected accounts receivable and advances

Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their normal value as reduced by
appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Individual trade receivables are
written off when management seems them not collectible. Impairment is made on the
expected credit losses, which are the present value of the cash shortfall over the expected
life of the financial assets.

The impairmemt provisions for financial assets are based on assumption about risk of default
and expected loss rates. Judgement in making these assumption and selecting the inputs to
the impairment calculation are based on past history, existing market condition as well as
forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Insurance claims
Insurance claims are recognised when the Company has reasonable certainty of recovery.

Impairment reviews

An impairment exists when the carrying value of an assetl or cash generating unit (*CGU")
exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less costs
to sell and its value in use. The value in use calculation is based on a discounted cash low
model. In calculating the value in use, certain assumptions are required to be made in
respect of highly uncertain matters, including management’s expectations of growth in
EBITDA, long term growth rates; and the selection of discount rates to reflect the risks
involved.
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{Crrency: NN}

31 March 2021 31 March 2021
] MM
8 Deferred Tax Assets {Nel)
Chthers . 1 067 568
= 1 067, %8
Meferred Tay Assels (Net) - 1067968
& Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balance with Banks - in Curment Accounts 3255916 (1) 9845263
5255916 9545263
10 Chhker Current Assets
Advances (o Supplicrs 2,400,000 2.250,000
Advances 1o Empiovess 2
2A00,000 2. 250,000

11 Equity Share Capital

31 March 2022 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 202]

Number of Number of
Shares NN Shares bl
Authorised
Ordinary Shares of NN | cach 600,000, 00 00O R (600, K, 000 60,000,000
Issued, Subscribed & Paid up ;
Crdimary Shares of NN | cach fully paid up 50, K, O B0, 000, K0 L, (W00 O 60,000,000

{a) Recoaciliation of number of equity shares ontstanding at the beginning and af the end of the vear ;

31 March 2022 30 March 2022 30 March 2021 31 March 2021

Sumber af Sumber of
Shares NN Shares NN
Number of shares outstanding. as of the beginning of the veas 0,100 (W0 A0, (00, D0 1, (00, 0 01,0010 R
Add - Number of shares allotted as fully paid-up duning the vear 3 & :
Less: Number of shares bought back duenng the vear - - .
Numbrer of shares outatanding as ut the end of the vear 60,000,000 40, (1T, DM £l 000, ) ), (000, M)

(b} Rights, preferences and restrictions attached (o shares

The compuny has issued only one class of equity shares with votmg rights having a par value of NN | per share

The company have not declared any dividend

I the eventof higudation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to recerve remauning assets of the company. The distnbution
will be m propomion 1o the numbers of equity shares held by shareholders
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1Currency NGN)

(¢ } Details of equity shareholders boldiog more than 5%
Name af Sharcholder

Agunta Pharma Ll , Indin
{d) Shares reserved for issue under options

12 OTHER EQUITY
Lreneral Heserve
Balonce at the beginning of the vear
Add - Transferred from Statement of Profit & Loss

Eschange Fluctuntion Reserve

Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Balance at the beginming of the year
Profit for the yeas
Less: Appropiuitions

~Trensfemed to Retained Eamings
Balance @i the vear end
Total Dither Equity

13 LEASE LIABILITY
|ase lability

14 (Mher Current Liabilities
(rhers payables

15 Revenne from Operafions
Sale of Producis
Stock-n-Trade

16 Purchases of Traded Goods (Related Party)

17T Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade

Inventories at the end of the vear :
Stock-in-1mde

Inventories at the beginning of the yvear ;
Stock-in-trade

Efect of foreign exchange (ranslation
Stock-in-irade

Total changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade :
Stock-mn-trade
Total changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade

18 Empaolvee Benefit Expenses
Sularres, Wages, Bonus and Allowances

31 March 2022 31 March 2022

3 March 2022
M

3 March 2021
NN

31 March 2021 31 March 2021

Number of Number of
Shares Shares e Holding
£, (R0, (1 L0, ) 00, 000 000 TR
Mil Ml mil
(% 676, 976) (% 676 76)
{9676,976) [H6T6,9ThH)
{33,496,580) (22,736, T08)
(10.823,57T) (30,740,271
(65,320,557) (53,496,980
2.932 101 2,506,617
2,932,101 2506617
25067750 20,922 750
25,067,750 10,922,750
SARTHT2
= 5487672
(8,204,677)
{A)
4. 147406
1R} 4 147 406
)
- 4,147 406
() - (A} +(C) 4,147 406
182346 422 758
LE213.746 421, TRE
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{Currency. NGN)

19 Finance Cost
On Lease Labality

M Depreciation
Depreciation of Tangible Assets (Befer note T)
Depreceation of Right to wuse Assets (Refer note T)

21 (iher Expenses
Selling Expenses
Clearing and Forwarding
Travelling Expenses
Remnt
Telephone. Telex & Postage
Repairs 10 Others
Instsrance
Exchange Difference (Net)
Loss on sale/discard of property, plant and eguipment {net)
Miscellancous Expenses

31 March 2022
i

699,464

699,464

2 50K, (000
2021799
4.521.79%

S61 T4

31,100

B50.170

ST00R
(5.641.777)

6,851,305
2,710,600

31 March 2021
NN

618,002
hI%.002

8581 250
2387285

10,968,535

(379,554}
(1045 802)
[520.566)
QORT R6R
13472431
1,598,215

21,212,593
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22.  Capital Management

Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business. Management monitors the retum on
capital, as well as the level of dividends to equity sharcholders. The board of directors secks to maintain
a balance between the higher returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowing and the
advaniages and security afforded by a sound capital position. Company’s target is to achieve a return on
capital above 30%: in 2021-22 the return was _ and in 2020-21 the retum was N/A

Company monitors capital using a ratio of ‘adjusted net debt' to "adjusted equity’. For this purpose,
adjusted net debt is defined as total liabilities, comprising interest-bearing loans and borrowings and
obligations under finance leases. less cash and cash equivalents and short term investments, Adjusted
equity comprises all components of equity.

Company’s policy is to keep the ratio below 1.00 and its adjusted net debt to equity ratio at 31 March

2022 was as follows. NGN

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 |

Debt Nil Nil |

Less: Cash and Cash equivalents 5.255.916 9.845.263 |

Net hebt A (5,255.916) (9.843,263)

Equity B (14.997,531) {3.173.955)

Net Debt to Equity ratio A'B NIA NA |
23.  Earnings Per share (EPS):

The numerator and denominator used to calculate Basic and Diluted Eamings per Share:

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 |

Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share:

Profit anributable to Equity shareholders- for Basic EPS (NGN) A (11.823.57T) (30,740, 271)

Add: Dilutive effect on profit (NGN) i Nil Nil

:fr[?éil ;Jl;lr‘hmmu to Equity shareholders for computing Diluted  CoA-B (11.823.577) (30.740.271)

ol LN T

w-_-igiht:d ;{wmgn Number of Equity Shares outstanding - for D 60,000,000 60,000,000

Basic EPS

Add: Dilutive effect ol option outstanding- Number of Equity E Nil Nil

El.i}:ir;:cd Average Number of Equity Shares for Diluted EPS F=D+E 60,000,000 G0, 000,000

Face Value per Equity Share (NGN) I |

Basic Earnings Per Share (NGN) AD (0.20) (0.51)

Diluted Earnings Per Shares (NGN) ¥ (0.20) 0.51)
24.  Employee Benefits

As required by Ind AS 19 *Emplovee Benefits’, the Company offers its employees: Short-term employee
benefits - These benefits include salaries and wages and other allowances which are paid immediately.
The total consideration paid in 2021-22 was NGN 2,823,746 (Previous Year NGN 422.788).

Retirement plan - No provision has been made in respect of employee retirement benefits as employees
are not cligible for such benefits. Besides the company does not have any pension scheme or any
contracted agreement binding itself to the employees.
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25.  Financial Instrument — fair values and risk management

Fair value measurements - - _____NGN
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Financial Instruments by category FYTPL Amuortised Cost FYTPL Amaortised Cost
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents Nil 5255916 il 9,845,263
Total Finuncial Assets Nil 5255916 il 9,845,263

Financial Liabilities

Lease Liability Nil 2,932,101 Nil 2506617
(Other Current Liabilities Nil 25,067,750 Mil 20,922,750
Total Financial Liabilities Nil 33,255,766 Nil 23,429,367

Level 1 — The hierarchy in level | includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This
includes mutual funds that have quoted price. The mutual funds are valued using the closing NAV.

Level 2 — The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (like forward
contracts) is determined using valuation technigues which maximise the use of observable market data
and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. 1f all significant inputs required to fair value as
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2,

Level 3 — If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument
is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities, etc. included in level 3.

A. Financial risk management
Company has exposure to following risks arising from financial instruments:
» Credit risk
» Liguidity risk
e Market risk

Risk management framework

Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company’s risk management framework. Management is responsible for developing and monitoring the
Company’s risk management policies, under the guidance of Audit Committee.

Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by it, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls and 1o monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management
policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's
activities, Company, through its training and procedures aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive
control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

Company’s Audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company's risk
management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in
relation to the risks faced by the Company. The audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by
internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk panagement controls
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i.

e
[IN

Credit risk

Company’s credit risk is minimal. The trade receivables arise mainly from transactions with its
approved customers. The maximum exposure to credit on these transactions is equal to the carrying
amount of these financial instruments. Customers are subject to stringent financial, credit and legal
verification process. In addition, trade receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis to
ensure timely collections. Accordingly, the Company's exposure to bad debts is not significant.

With respect to credit risk arising from other financial assets of the Company, which comprise cash
in banks and receivables (except for advances to suppliers), the Company's exposure to credit risk
arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal 1o the carrying amount of
these instruments. The Company limits its exposure to credit risks by depositing its cash only with
financial institutions duly evaluated and approved by the Board of Directors. The Company’s
receivables is minimal since no default payments were made by the counterparties. An impairment
analysis is performed at cach reporting date on an individual basis for major clients,

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and
collateral obligations without incurring unacceptable losses. The Company's objective is to, at all
times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The
Company closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system,
Presently the Company has existing long term loans that fund capital expenditures. Working capital
requirements are adequately addressed by internally generated funds. Trade reccivables are kept
within manageable levels.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices — such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates
and equity prices — will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. Financial instruments affected
by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits, investments, and derivative financial
instruments. Company s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including the effects of
changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. All transactions are carried out within
the guidelines set by the risk management committee,

The sensitivity analysis have been prepared on the basis of derivatives and the proportion of financial
instruments in foreign currencies are all constant. The analysis excludes the impact of movements
in market variables on the carrving value of postemployment benefit obligations, provisions and on
the non-financial assets and liabilities. The sensitivity of the relevant income statement item is the
effect of the assumed changes in the respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets
and financial liabilities held as of 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021,

a) Currency risk
The Company’s foreign exchange risk results primarily from movements of the Nigerian Naira
against the US dollar with respect to US dollar denominated financial assets and liabilities. The
Company s transactional currency exposures arise from its inventories which is purchases from
Holding Company in US dollar. The Company regularly reviews the trend of the foreign
exchange rates. Company does not have any assets / liability in USD.

b) Interest rate risk
The Company have no borrowings and hence there is no interest rate risk,

¢) Price risk
Company does not have any exposure to price risk, as there is no equity investments.




Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

26.  Note on foreign currency exposures on assets and liabilities:

During the year, the Company has not entered into Forward Exchange Contract. The company does not
have any asset / liability at the vear ending on 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021.

27.  Disclosure for operating leases under Ind AS 116 Nil *Leases™:

The Group have taken various premiscs under operating lease. These are generally cancellable and
ranges from 1] months to 5 years and are renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreeable terms.
Some of these lease agreements have price escalation clauses. There are no restrictions imposed by these
lease arrangements and there are no sub leases. There are no contingent rents. Applied a single discount
rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics.

Right of use assets

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
ost
Opening Balance 6,763.975 6.763.975
Additions 2,776,020 Nil
Disposals Nil Nil
Closing Balance 9,539,994 6, 763975
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Opening Balance 4.774.570 2,387,285
Depreciation 2,021,799 2,387,285
Impairment loss il Nil
Eliminated on disposals of assets Nil il
Closing Balance 6,796,369 4,774,570
Carrying amounts 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 |
{iross 9,539,994 6,763,975
Net 2,743,625 1989 404
Cash outlow on leases
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
{Repayment) / Addition of lease liabilities 425484 (2.381,998)
Total cash outflow on leases 425,484 (2.381.998)
Maturity analysis
Less than 1 vear Owver | vears

31 March 2022

Nil 2,932,101

o
(=
Nil z.ﬁm,m(

Lease liahilities
31 March 2021
Ll,:as-: liabilities
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28.  Contingent Liabilitics and commitments:
There are no contingent liabilities and commitments by the Company.
29.  Related party disclosure as required by Ind AS 24 are given below:
A) Relationships:
Category 1 - Holding Company & Fellow Subsidiary
Ajanta Pharma Ltd., India (Holding Company)
B) Following transactions were carried out with related partiess NGN
Sr. Mo, Particulars Category 3 March 2022 3 March 2021 |
1. Purchase Heturn:
Ajanta Pharma Lid ., India | Mil 25168
2, Espense Reimbursement:
Ajanta Pharma Lid., India I 13,191 815 26,863,864
C) Amount outstanding as on 31 March 2022 NGN
Sr.No.  Particulars Category 31 Murch 2022 31 March 2021 |
1. Advance Pavahle: I
Ajanta Pharma Lid., India | 4. 160.000 Nil

30.  Impact of COVID-19 (Global Pandemic)

The Company continued 1o take in to account the possible impact of COVIDNIII9 in preparation of
financial statements, including but not limited to its assessment of liquidity and going concern
assumption, recoverable values of its financial and non-financial assets, impact on revenue and on costs.
I'he Company has been able to effectively manage the operations till now with appropriate precautions,
without any significant impact of COVIID-19 on the business. The Company will continue to closely
monitor future economic conditions to ensure business continuity.

31. Previous year figures have been regrouped | re-classified wherever necessary. to confirm to current
period’s classification in order 1o comply with the requirements of the amended Schedule 111 to the
Companies Act, 2013 effective from 01 April 2021.

32.  The Company has one segment of activity namely “Pharmaceuticals™.
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